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Financial Highlights
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Strategy

Our strategy is to enhance the return to shareholders by:

® Growing sales volumes ® Concentrating on design

2011 was another record year for
revenue for the Portmeinon Group,
with revenues up by 4 6% to £53.610k
(2010 £51,243k)

Focusing on increasing

and quality

Launch of over 350 new product
Ines in 2012 demonstrates the
Group’s commitment to iInnovafion
and onginakhty

profit margins ® Delivering a progressive
Operating and net profit margins were dividend policy
increased to 11.7% (2010 10 4%) and Dividends paid and proposed
11 8% (2010 10 2%) in the year Increased by 12.6% to 19.60p
(2010 17 40p) improving the return
Addressing key customer to shareholders
product requirements
Growth In major markets of USA, UK ® Making suitable acquisitions

and South Korea reflect commitment
to key customers

The Group makes acquisitions where
appropriate opportunifies arise
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Investment Themes

Portmeirion Group PLC is a British company, based in Stoke-on-Trent We are a
significant force in the homewares Industry, @ market leader in high quality
and innovatively designed fableware, cookware, giftware and tabletop
accessories Portmeiron Group encompasses four world leading brands

@ Four exceptional British Brands -
Portmeinon, Spode, Royal Worcester
and Pimpernel

® Strong Balance Sheet - no
outstanding debt and substantial
cash reserves

® Highly profitable - record earnings
reported for 2011

® Progressive dividend policy -
supported by strong cash generation

® Efficient compettive UK
manufactunng base - significant
increase In manufactunng capacity
dunng the year

® Track record of growth - organic
sales Increqses supplemented by
successful acquisitions

¢ Diverse strategy for growth worldwide
- customer focused product design
and marketing

Read more online@
www porimeinongroup com
Pictured: Sophie Conran for Portmeinon
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Our Brands

Portmeirion

Portmeinon 1s committed to producing innovative
designs that sit comfortably with everyday Iife, as
epitomised by the famous Botanic Garden range
The diversity of high qualty products within the
Portmeinon brand delivers not only beautiful designs
but practicalty for modern living

For 2012, two new ranges have been launched

under Sanderson for Portmerrion Porcelain Garden, a
classically beautiful tableware range, and Fifi, a quirky
new giftware range Chnstrmas Wish, a festve collection,
as well as the vibrant Vintage Kellogg's range, bring a
fouch of fun and colour to the kiichen

Visit www portmeirion com

Portmetnion Ranges

Botanie Blue, Botanic Garden, Exotic Botanic Garden,
Botanic Roses, Christmas Wish, Crazy Dausy, Dawn
Chorus. Eden. Pormona, Sanderson for Porfrmeirion Fifi
and Porcelain Garden, Secret Garden, Sophie Conran
for Portmenrion, The Holly and The vy The Very Hungry
Caterpiffar and Vintage Kellogg's

Pimpernel

Pmpernel continues to offer an unnvalled selechon of
decorahve and high quality placemat and coaster
designs The range 1s growing within the home
accessones market with extenstons into textile and tray
sectors encompassing classic popular designs from
both Portmeinon Group brands and icensed artwork

Percelain Garden and Fifi from Sanderson have been
introduced in 2012 to co-ordinate with the Sanderson
for Portmemon tableware New designs from Sophie
Conran complement the successful Sophie Conran
for Portmeinon range Other addihons include Dawn
Chorus and Vintage Kellogg s designs on tabletop
acceassones such as placemats, coasters, trays and
textles

Pimpernel

Placemats coasters, trays and accessories,
mugs,children’s dinnerware and cuflery in an
extensive array of designs
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QOur Brands continued

Spode

With o nch hertage, the well established Spode
brand has a classic product porifolio that appeals
across generations and includes many favourntes
such as Blue Halian and Chnstmas Tree

(0]
[&]
C
o)
£
—_
R
=
[(}]
Q.
—
= |
(@]

Spode ranges continue to flounsh and are well
positioned to develep In the premium sector of the
market New ranges are focused on modern day
sophisticated entertaining attuned to the needs of
today s consumer whilst drawing on the iImpressive
design archive within the brand

Visit www spode com

Spode Ranges
Baking Days, Blue ltalian, Blue Room, Christmas Tree,
Paddington Bear and Woodland

Bone China Chnstmas Rose, Isabella Kara, Nectar,
Petal Piafinum Sophia, Stofford Flowers and Stafford
White

Qur Governance

Royal Worcester

Royal Worcester has a nch and diverse design
heritage, onginating from 1751 The brand includes
both new and established ranges offering a wide
spectrum of products from fashionable bone china
mugs to the unique and opulent Painted Fruit
tableware

Qur Financials

In 2012 Royal Worcester celebrates The Queen's
Diamond Jubilee with a beautful collechon inctuding
Imited ediion pieces Other new ifems such as
Serendipity, an elegant and affordable white bone
china tableware range. additions to the mug
collechon and stunming Painted Frurt tea ware all
demonstrate the strategy fo build on Royal Worcester's
hentage and widen s breadth of products

Visit www royalworcester com

Royal Worcester Ranges

Diamond Jubilee collechon, Evesham Gold and
FPainted Frunt

Bone china Holly Ribbons Serendipity and mug
collections

Shareholder Information
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Our Markets

Portmeirion Group sells its products directly to retailers in the US
and the UK and through exclusive distributors and agents in
over 60 other countries around the world.

lts major markets are the US, the UK and South Korea.

Overview

Portmeinon Group specialises in the design, manufacture and supply of Innovatively designed quality ceramic
and other hemeware products Our products include tableware, cookware and gifts as well as complementary
items from placemaots and coasters fo vases and candles

Operating in vaned market sectors from casual fo formal dining with mid price to prestige products Portmeinon
Group 1s a signfficant force in the tableware and homewares industry

Details of our retait cutlets are shown on page 80 Worldwide stockists of our products can be found on our
website www portmeinongroup com

Worldwide Markets

® Portmeainon Group Markets

B Agents/Disinbutors

1 Australia 7 lialy 13 Singapore 19 Tawan

2 Bermuda 8 Japan 14 South Afnca 20 Thaland

3 Canada ® New Zealand 15 South Amenca 21 Ukraine

4 China 10 Norway 16 South Korea 22 United Arab Emirates
5 Germany 11 Pakistan 17 SriLlonko

6 Hungary 12 Russia 18 Sweden
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Awards 2011

Portmeinon Group celebrated the achievement of two significant
awards during 2011: The Queen’s Award for Enterprise recognising
substantial growth in international tfrade and a Workplace Health
Award demonstrating the value the Group places on its employees.
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Queen’s Award

Porimeinon Group was awarded The Queen's Award
for Enterprise in the category of Intemational Trade in
Apnl 2011 The Queen’s Award for Enterpnse recogrises
the Group’s substantial growth In overseas revenue
and outstanding achievernant In Infemahonal trade

The Group's export sales have Increased by 84% n
the three years ending 31 December 2011, adding
over £18 milion of addihonal revenue All key markets
have seen significant growth in recent years For the
year ended 31 December 2011, the United States,
the Group’s largest market, accounted for 40% of

the Group s revenues whilst South Korea accounted
for 20%. followed by Canada at 4%, faly at 2% and
Australia at 1%

Our Governance

The Award was presented by the Lord Leutenant

of Staffordshire at Portmemon Group’s offices All UK

head office and factory employees were invited to

attend the presentation UK employees received gift Pictured (left to right}: Michael Haynes (Group Sales

vouchers and a commemeorative fray to mark the  and Marketing Director), Sir James Hawley KCVO (Lord

occasion Lieutenant of Staffordshire) and Lawrence Bryan (Chief
Executive)

Workplace Award

Our Financials

Inv July 2011, the Group’s main operating company
and UK employer achieved Gold Level in the
Staffordshire Workplace Heatth Award., for its
continuing suppert for the health, welkbeing and
welfare of its employees at the Group s head office,
factory site and distnbution centre

The County Council led award scheme 1s
presented to organisations which actively
support good employee health

The Group's proachve and positive approach
to its workforce was crted as being a key factor
In the achievemeni of the award, as was its
ongoing commitment to ifs staff

Shareholder Information

The Group currently employs over 550 people Pictured (left to right): Robert Marshall (Staffordshire County
in the UK and 1s proud to be accredited as an Councillor), Samantha Pearce (HR and Benefits Manager),
Investor in People and Gordon Lomax (Health and Safety Manager)
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Business Review

2011 was another excellent year for Portmeinon

Group For the third successive year we have grown

our revenues to record levels and our earnings and
dmdends are at all hme hughs Our brands are stronger
and more valuable and our product rianges ore deeper
and wider than at any time 1n our fifty two year history
We have a healthy cash balance Portmemnon i1s in fine
conditron

Dividend

The Board 1s recommending a final dvidend of 15 70
pence per share. bringing the total paid and proposed
for the year to 19 60 pence per share, an increase of
12 6% over the amount paid In respect of 2010 The
dividend will be paid, subyect to shareholder approval,
on 23 May 2012 to shareholders on the reqister on

27 Apni 2012

The full year dividends paid and proposed, are covered
2 2 times by earnings (2010 2 0 times) The Board
confinues to consider that such a level of cover 1s
sustainable

For the last six years - 2006 to 2011 - we have Increased
the fotal dividends paid by an average of & 7% per
annum compound QOur dividend 1s now 48% higher
than it was in 2005

The Board operates a progressive dvidend policy by
which we mean maintaiming a sustainable level of
divrdend cover and trying to increase the dividend
unless our views of fufure trading cenditions or cash
requirements for the business dictate otherwise We are
N business to pay dividends over the long term

“Our brands are
sfronger and more
valuable and our
product ranges are
deeper and wider than
at any fime in our fifty
two year history.”

Results for the year

Revenues were £53 6 million for the year. an increase of
4 6% over 2010, this percenfage iIncrease would have
been higher but for the translation effect of our US dollar
denominated sales which decreased the percentage
from 6 5% to the reported 4 6% ANl our main markets
showed increases in revenue, with South Korea growing
by 9 3% UK by 9 6% and USA growing by 4 5% in iocal
currency but by 0 7% in translated sterling figures

The pre-excephonal profit before tax was €6 3 miliion,
an increase of 16 2% over the previous year (2010 £5 4
milion) and pre-excephional EBITDA was £7 4 million,
an increase of 11 6% over the previous year (2010 £6 6
rmilion)

Profitability growth outpaced revenue growth duning
the year under review because of the geared effect of
higher volumes on a largely fixed cost base The volume
of product from our own production increased by some
18% dunng the yaar as we continued to dnive further
volume and effictency gains out of our Stoke-on-Trent
factory

We depend on the quality and the image of our brands
N general and our products in the detail We have
continued to Invest heavily in product development and
in markehng. these costs today are for benefit In the
future

Our largest market remains the United States with 40%
of our revenues (2010 41%) We maintain a showroom
and a warehouse in the United States employing some
40 people n total We are headquartered in the United




Business Review continued

Kingdom in Stoke-on-Trent where we have a production
faciity and a warehouse, the United Kingdom 1s our
second largest market and accounts for 26% of our
revenues (2010 25%) Our third largest market 1s South
Korea where we operate with a distnbuhon partner, this
represented 20% of our revenues In 2011 (2010 19%)
The Rest of the World 1s important fo us accounting for
14% of our revenues (2010 15%). we have had some
pleasing successes In these other markets in 2011 which
hopetully will provide bases from which to expand in the
future Our market share does not exceed 10% in any of
our major geographic markets

Balance Sheet

We finished the year with cash balances of £6 8 million
(2010 £ 6 2 million) despite investing a further £2 8
million info new stack - principally in the US - to back
new product launches in 2012

Year end stock balances were £12 5 million, which were
£2 8 million above the 31 December 2010 figure We
have nine new patterns lkaunching in the first half of
2012 and it s important to have the stock to support
these launches

498,218 of our shares are held in Treasury these were
purchased at an average price of £1 87 each and we
plan to use them to satisfy share options

Our pension scheme deficit, from the defined benefit
pensicn scheme which we closed both to new entrants
and for future accruals in 1999, 1s now £4 ¢ million
(2010 £4 3 millien) despite a cash contnbution by the
Group of £1 1 milhon dunng the year The increase in
thus hability has ansen because we have reduced the
discount rate which we use to discount future labilities
in line with bond yield moverments as required by
accounting standards This old defined benefit scheme
confinues to drain some £1 milhon plus per annum
from the Group for no future shareholder benefit
Because of accounting rules the effect on reported
profits 1Is mimimal the effect 1s on our cash balances
and net asset pasition through reserves We continue

to stand behind our obligahons fo our pension scheme
members

Proctucts

Our focus remains on berng a customer affentive,
design led bustiness In 2012 we have already
introduced over 350 new lines. and In 2011 we
introduced over 500 new lines QOur biggest seling
pattern i1s Portmetnon Botanic Garden which was
launched forty years ago this year Spode Blue ltalian
is our oldest pattern, which was launched in 1816 Our
second biggest seling pattern 1s Spode Chnstmas

Portmeinon Group PLC
www portmeiriongroup com

David Cameron
visits our factory

The Pnme Minister visited the Portmeinon Group
factory in Stoke-on-Trent on 28 Apnl 2011 and
met with Directors factory employees and
office staff, while on a tour of the Midlands and
surrounding region

The Rt Hon David Cameron was shown around
the factory by the Chief Executive Lawrence
Bryan and the Non-executive Charman Richard
Steele

Durning his visit the Pnime Minister met a group of
pottery decorators and was given a tour of the
factory and the showrcom The Prime Minister
was shown the Group’s wide product range
including the Royal Worcester commemorative
collection for the Royal Wedding

Speaking from the factory, the Pime Minister
said he was "delighted to meet with Portmeinon
Group foday The Pottenes remain hugely
important to the UK manufactunng sector, it

15 vifal we continue fo invest Iin the skills and
workforce to ensure that the Briish poltery
industry continues to thrive”
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Business Review continued

Tree which was launched seventy four years ago, and
our third biggest seling pattern 1s Sophie Conran for
Portmeirion which was launched In 2006

When product development 1s combined with customer
atientiveness and contnual enhancement. then long
term value 1s created with a sales stream reaching
many vears ahead, this i1s the essence of brand values

A hist of our current patterns can be found within the
Our Brands sechion of this report on pages 4 and 5, and
also at www portmeinon com, www royalworcester com
and www spode com These websites list our worldwide
stockists and also allow for enline purchasing

Produchion

Our strategy of seeking products from the most
approprate sources continues o bear fruit, it also
provides safeguards in that we can spread our sourcing
nsks Our Stoke-or-Trent factory has never been busier
and we are continuing to find ways of increasing our
volume throughput Our sourcing functions deal with
top qualty manufacturers, mainly in the Far East If1s
important to remember that some of the countries

we purchase from have a ceramic history even more
ustnous than that of Stoke-on-Trent Cur reputation s in
our backstamps whether we manufacture or source the
product

Distnbution

Our two main warehouses are 1in Stoke-on-Trent and
Connecticut, they are both well established and provide
an efficient distnbution service to our customers We
have now reached agreement with a Chinese partner
for ihem o build and maintan a dedicated warehouse
for us In China which will allow for more cost effechve
deliveries to our Asia/Pacific region customers

Sales and Markehng

Sales and marketing are two way processes which sit
between the customer and the product design teams,
they are usually country specific and often customer
specific within the country

We trade In over sixty countnes worldwide, through

our own people In the UK and the USA through a joint
venture In Canada and through caretully selected and
supported distnbutors and agents in other countries
We are enjoying some success 1n developing countnes
which have previously only been small markets for us,
but remain alert fo the overwhelming importance of
USA, UK, South Korea and Canada in our sales efforts

It 15 a well tied and proven business model which
builds on a large demestic market to provide the basis
for exporting to other markets and in 2011 we were

honoured to receive The Queen'’s Award for Enterprise
in the category of International Trade. recognising the
growth that we have achieved in our overseas sales
Some 74% of our revenues are now generated from
overseas

Our przewinning presence at the Ambiente Trade Show
in February 2012 was larger than in previous years
Export markets remain central fo our future growth

People

The average number of pecple we employ iIncreased
from 532 in 2010 to 579 1n 2011 an increase of 8 8%

The average sales per employea In 2011 fell to £92,691
from £96.321 1n 2010 but with a higher value added per
employee

All employees, excluding the Non-execuhve Directors,
parficipate in annual incentive schemes Maximum
payouts were awarded for 2011 to all staff except
Executive Directors Whilst 2011 was a record year of
revenues and dividends for Portmaeirion the overall
performance fell short of cur demanding expectations
and so Executive Directors only received some two thirds
of thelr maximum incentive scheme awards

Health and safety remain high on our agenda
Employee welfare 1s imporiant to us

Al three Non-executive Directors are seeking annual re-
election, thus giving shareholders 6 regular opportunity fo
express therr views on the governance of the Company




Business Review continued

"Our prizewinning
presence at the
Ambiente Trade Show
in February 2012 was
larger than in previous
years.

Risks

The Report of the Directors on pages 14 and 15 lists the
principal nsks which we consider the business is subject
to We keep these nsks under continuous review, four
ment a little meore discussion here

Qur currency risks are broadly matched in that our US
dollar receivables equate to cur US dollar payables,
and our other currency risks are covered by forward
contracts where matenal

We do have a heavy dependency on our own UK
produchon, and on outsourced Far East production
Whilst this means that we are not dependant upon any
one areq, it also means that we are exposed tc more
than one

Energy costs are a major cost mput for us, whether on
our own production or on products sourced from other
suppliers We will continue to push ourselves to the
forefront of energy eficiency in produchion

Our closed defined benefit pension scheme s
discussed above, we remamn exposed n this area
although we have undertaken as much mihgathon as
possible

Corporate Governance

The Beard recognises the importance of good
standards of corperate governance and continually
seeks o improve our prachices for the benefit of
shareholders where it 1s felt appropnate As an AlM listed
company it 1s mportant that we continue to be flexible
yet achieve efficient and effechve govermnance relative
to our size, markets and business structure

Outlook

While we have expenenced a slower start in 2012
than we enjoyed in 2011, this was expected and our
confidence remains for the full year Europe, and in

Portmeinon Group PLC n
www portmeinongroup com

particular ltaly which is our fifth largest market, is slow
Set aganst this, we remain confident in our larger
markets and excited by the Dicmond Jubilee which
we are hopeful will provide significantly higher levels of
business compared to those which we enjoyed for the
Royal Wedding 1n 2011

We are a widely based home goods busmness Our
ranges run from our hentage products through to
contemporary ware, icensed products, fine dining.
casual dining, giftware, glassware, placemats and
accesscrnies Cur price points run from £2 50 to over
£9.000, our markets are widespread and our sourcing
cdiversified

We remain confident for the future and resolute as

jo our strategy of attentive design, assured quality,
products sotd with professionalism and brands which
are nurtured against a commercial backdrop of
conservahive financing We continue fo consider
acquisition opportunibies against our demanding
crtena of business fit and price

= ot

Richard J. Stesle
Non-executive Chairman

Lawrence F. Bryan
Chief Executive
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Board of Directors

1 Richard J Steele Non-executive Charrman

2 Lawrence F Bryan, Chief Executive

3 Michael Haynes, Group Sales and Marketing Director

4 Brett WJ Phillips, Group Finance Director and Company Secretary
5 Lady Judge. Nor-execufive Director

6 Jarus Kong Non-executive Director




Board of Directors continued

Lawrence F Bryan

Chief Executive

Lawrence Bryan has been a Director
since 2000 and Chief Execuhve
since 2001 As the Chief Executive
he oversees all the Group's business
and s responsible for formulating
the Group’s objectives and strategy
In addion, all operatons In the
United States report directly 1o him
as Prasident of Portrmeinon Group
USA, Inc

Lawrence has exiensive expenence
in the glass ceramics and gift
mdustry He was previously the

Vice President, Sales of Waterford
Wedgwood USA, President, Waterford
Wedgwood USA Retall and President
of Infernational China Cormpany He
15 a Fellow of the Royal Society of Arts

Richard J Steele

Nornrexecutive Chairman

Dick Steele 1s responsible for leading
the Board and ensunng If operates

in an effective manner, whilst
promoting effective communication
with shareholders He 1s a Chartered
Accountant and a Member of the
Institute of Taxaton He has substanhal
expensnce ganed as Group
Finance Director of a number of listed
companies He 1s a Lay Member of
Council at Keele University, a director
of the Quoted Companies Allance
and also Nonexecutive Chaimnan of
Fosse Management Limited Country
Baskets and Racoon Intematonal
Holdings Limited

Board Committees
Audit Committee

RJ Steele (Charman)
J Kong

Lady Judge

Michael Haynes

Group Sales and Markehng Director
Michael Haymes was appointed fo

the Board in 2007 and 1s responsible
for the Group s sales and markefing,
design, production quality control and
logistics He 1s also Managing Director
of Porimeinon Group UK Limited, the
Group’s main operating company

Michael has considerable expenence
In the tableware giftware and
glassware sector His sales and
marketing career has covered the
diverse fields of grocenes, tolletnes
cosmehcs, siverware china and glass
Michael ran his own consultancy
business for many years and helped
Portrmeinon develop its Far East
business before joining the Group

Jamis Kong

Non-executive Director

Janis Kong OBE s a Non-executive
Director of Kingfisher PLC
Copenhagen Arports A/S, Network
Rall and VisitBntain and Chairman
of the Board of Trustees of Forum
for the Future Formerly. she held
positions as Non-executve Director
of the Royal Bank of Scotland
Group PLC, Execuhive Chairman of
Heathrow Arrport Limited, Chairman
of Heathrow Express Limited and as
a member of the BAA plc Board She
holds an honorary Doctorate with
the Open University

Remuneration Commiftee
R J Steele (Charman)

J Kong

Lady Judge

Portmeinon Group PLC 13
www porimerongroup cem

Brett WJ Phillips

Group Finance Director and
Company Secretary

Brett Phillips was appointed to the
Board in 1988 and s responsible

for all aspects of financial

control, Information systems and
management reporhng, human
resources, iIntellectual property, and
legal and company secretanal
matters He 1s Chief Financial Cfficer
of Portmeinon Group UK Limited, the
Group’s main operating company,
and sits on all subsidiary Boards

Breft 1s a Chartered Accountant

He 1s Chairman of the Board of
Furong Mills Limited, an associated
undertaking of the Group, and 1s
also a Non-executive Director of
Stafford Railway Bullding Society

Lady Judge

Non-executive Director

Lady Judge CBE is a fawyer
infernafional banker and
enirepreneur She I1s Chairman of
the Pension Protection Fund She
15 also a Non-executive Director
of NV Bekaert S A Formerly she
was Charrman of the UK Atomic
Energy Authonty, Deputy Chamrman
of the School of Oriental and
Afncan Studies, o Commissioner
of the United States Secunhes
and Exchange Cormrmission and
an Execuhve Director of News
International and Samuel
Montagu plc

Nomination Committee
R J Steele (Charman)

J Kong

Lady Judge

L F Bryan

Our Performance
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in presenting therr annual report on the affairs of the Group, together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings for the year ended 31 December 2011 The
Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 28 to 31 forms part of this report

Pnncipal activities
The Group markets ceramic tableware cookware and giftware, glassware, candles, placemats, coasters and cther
associated products, and manufactures ceramics There have been no changes in achvities dunng the year

The subsidiary and associated undertakmgs of the Group are histed in note ¢ of the notes to the Company
Financial Statements on pages 74 and 75

Business review

A fuli review of the performance of the Group for the year 1s given in the section of the Business Review entiffed
“Results for the year” on pages 8 and @ Current frading and the future are commented on in the "Outlook” section
of the Business Review on page 11 That information Is iIncorporated into this report by reference and together with
the paragraphs that follow, comprise the business review required by the Companies Act 2006

Informaton about the use of financial Instruments by the Company and its subsidiarnes I1s given In note 31 on
pages 66 and 67

Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 35 The movements on reserves are shown in notes 25 and 26 on pages
60 and 61

On 3 October 2011 an intenm dividend of 3 $0p (2010 3 90p) per share was paid on the ordinary share capital The
Directors recommend that a final dividend of 15 70p per share be pard (2010 13 50p). making o tota! for the year
of 19 60p (2010 17 40p) per share The final dividend will be paid subject to shareholders’ approval, on

23 May 2012, to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 27 April 2012

Key performance indicators

The Group Board uses a range of performance measures to monitor and manage the business The Board regards
measures relating to the delivery of shareholder value as parhicularly important These measures together with
therr comparatives, are shown in the Financial Highlights on page 1 There are also ¢ number of non-financial
performance measures used to manage the business These include customer service levels, iIncidence of
accidents and new product delivery performance

Research and development

The Group conhinues fo research into methods of facking the environmental 1ssues facing it as a ceramics
manufacturer whilst improving manufacturing efficiency The development of innovative new products and designs
15 a key part of the Group’s strategy

Principal nsks and uncertainties
The Group Board considers the nsks to the business at every Board meeting It formally reviews and documents the
pnncipal nsks to the business at least annually
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Report of the Directors continued

Principat nsks identified in additton to those discussed in the Business Review on page 11 include

® Economic downturn - the Group monitors and maintains close relationships with its key customers and suppliers
to be able to identify signs of financial difficuthes early Sales trends In its major markets are constantly reviewed
to enable early achon fo be taken in the event of sales declining

® Competfor pressure - compehitor pressure could result in losing sales to key competitors The Group manages
this nsk by providing quality products and maintaining strong relationships with its key customers

@& Reliance on key suppliers - the Group’s purchasing activihes could expose It to over reliance on certain
suppliers and inflationary pricing pressure To mitigate this, the Group seeks to ensure there 1s enough breadth in
its supplier base such that this nsk remains manageable

@ Loss of key personnel - this would present significant operahonal dificutties for the Group Management seek to
ensure that key personnel are appropnately remunerated to ensure that good performance i1s recognised

Details of the Group's financial nsk management policies are included in nofe 31 on pages 66 and 67

Going concern

The Group's business achvihes, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
position are set out In the Business Review on pages 8 to 11 In addition, note 31 on pages 66 to 69 includes the
Group’s financial sk management objectives details of its financiat instruments and hedging achvihes and its
exposures to credit nsk and iquichty nsk

At 31 December 2011, the Group had a cash balance of €6 8 millon and an unused bank facility with available
funding of €4 milion It manufactures approximately 45% of its products and sources the remainder from third party
supphers The Group sells into a number of different markets worldwide and has a spread of customers within tis
major UK and US markets Consequently, the Directors believe that the Group 15 well placed to manage its business
nsks successfully despite the continuing uncertain economic outlook

After making enquines the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources o continue In operahonal existence for the foraeseeable future Accordingly, they continue to
adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the annual repoert and accounts

Directors and their interests

The Drrectors of the Company, who served throughout the year, are listed on pages 12 and 13 together with
biographical and commiftee membership details In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Associatton and
good corporate governance practice, L ¥ Bryan, Lady Judge, J Kong and R J Steele will retire at the Annual General
Meehng to be held on 16 May 2012 These Directors. being eligible, are offenng themselves for re-election The

Board forrmally reviewed the performance of each Director concemed and concluded that they rermain effective
and are committed to therr roles at Portmemnon Group PLC Further details on the composihon of the Board and
appointment of Directors are given in the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 28 to 31
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With regard to the appointment and replacement of Directors, the Company 1s governed by its Articles of
Assocration, the Companies Act 2006 and related legistation The Articles themselves may be amended by special
resolution of the shareholders The powers of Directors are described in the Corporate Governance Statement on
pages 28 to 31

The Directors who held office at 31 December 2011 had the following beneficial interests in the share capital of the
Company

At 31 December 2011 At 31 December 2010

Sp ordinary shares 5p ordinary shares

Benehclal Beneficial

L F Bryan 256,523 202 000
M Haynes 41,300 25,000
Lady Judge 5,000 5.000
J Kong 5,000 5,000
BwWJ Phillips 47,955 40,455
R J Steele 22,000 20,000

Directors’ share interests include the interests of ther spouses, civil partners and infant children or stepchuldren
as required by Section 822 of the Companias Act 2006 There were no changes in the beneficial interests of the
Directors in the Company's shares between 31 December 2011 and 21 March 2012

Details of Directors’ share ophons are provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 26 and 27
Detals of transachons with Directors and other related parties are to be found in note 29 on page 62

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its Directors which remain in force at
the date of this report

Capital structure

Details of the share capital In1ssue. together with details of the movements in the Company's 1ssued share copital
durning the year are shown in note 24 on page 59 The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no
nght fo fixed income Each share carnes the nght to one vote at general meehings of the Company

There are no specific restnictions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by
the general provisions of the Articles of Association and prevailing legiskation The Directors are not aware of any
agreements between holders of the Company'’s shares that may result in restnctions on the transfer of securhes or
on vohing rnghts

Details of employee share schemes are set out In notes 24 and 32 on pages 60, 70 and 71

No person has any special nghts of control over the Company's share capital and all issued shares are fully paid
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Substantial shareholdings
In addition to the Directors’ interests notified above, the Company had been notfied of the following beneficial
interests in 3% or more of its 1ssued share capital excluding treasury shares as at 21 March 2012

Percentage of

voting nghts and Number of

1ssued share capital ordinary shares

New Fortress Finance Holdings Ltd BVI* 16 94% 1.733.000
Trustees of Caroline Fulbnght Settlement* 14 04% 1,436,195
Euan CooperWillis 8 66% 886,150
Investec Wealth & Investment Limiteci® 657% 671,865
Shahrzad Farhad 618% 632,333
Kamrouz Farhad 5 50% 562,917
Trustees of Second Caroline Fulbnght Settlement * 3 48% 356,077

Notes

All holdings are direct holdings unless otherwise indicated

* Shareholding held indirectly through a nominee

Client holdings registered in the name of nominee companies 100% owned by Investec Wealth & Investment
bimited

A

Annual General Meeting

The Annucl General Meeting will be held at the registered office of the Company at London Rood Stoke-on-Trent,
on 16 May 2012 ot 12 00 noon (the "2012 AGM™) All ordinary and special resolutions to be proposed at that
meeting are detalled in the Nohice of Annual General Meeting As special business at the 2012 AGM, the following
resolutions will be proposed together with the resoluhon described below regarding market purchases of the
Company’s shares

® Authonty to allot shares - under sechion 551 of the Companies Act 2006 the Directors of @ Company may only
allot urissued shares or any nghts to subscnbe for or to convert any secunty into shares In the Company it
authonsed to do so The resolution giving authonty to aliot shares, if passed, will continue fo provide flexibility for the
Directors to act in the best interests of shareholders, when opportunities anse, by issung new shares, and replaces
the authonty given at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 18 May 2011 The authornity will allow
the Directors to allot new shares up to a nominal value of £170,499, approxmately equal to a third of the present
1ssued share capital excluding treasury shares as at 21 March 2012 The Directors have no current infention of
exercising this authonty except in relation fo the allotment of shares under the share option schemes

® Disapplication of pre-emphon nghts - If equity securnhies are to be allotted for cash, sechon 561(1) of the
Companies Act 2006 requires that those equity securnhes are offered first to exishing shareholders in proportion to
the number held by them ot the time of the offer and otherwise In compliance with the tachnical requirements
of that Act Those pre-emphon provisions also apply to the sale of treasury shares by the Company However,
it may be n the interests of the Company for the Directors fo allot shares and/or sell treasury shares other
than to shareholders In proportion to therr exishing holdings or otherwise than stnctly in compliance with
those requirements This resolution would allow the Directors, pursuant to sechion 570 and section 573 of
the Comparies Act 2006, fo allot shares and to sell treasury shares for cash without first offening them to
shareholders in accordance with that Act The authonty 1s imited to the 1ssue of equity secuniies and/or sale
of treasury shares for cash up to a maxmum nomnal amount of £51,149 which 1s approximately equal to 10%
of the present 1ssued share capital excluding treasury shares as at 21 March 2012 and allotments of equity
securtties and/or sale of treasury shares in connechon with a nghts 1ssue or other offer to shareholders
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Report of the Directors continued

® New Share Ophon Plans - authonty shall be sought from sharehclders to replace the Portmeinon 2002 Share
Cption Scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) which expires on 20 May 2012 with the proposed Portmeinon
2012 Approved Share Option Plan (the "2012 Approved Plan®) and the Portmeinion 2012 Unapproved Share
Option Plan (the "2012 Unapproved Plan™) which will allow the Company to centinue to offer a discretionary
share option plan, with an element of tax advantage to the extent permitted under the 2012 Approved Plan

Acquisthon of the Company’s own shares

The Company did not purchase any of its own shares dunng the year The Company holds 498,218 treasury
shares, purchased at an average cost of 187p per share At the end of the year, the Directors had authonty, under
a shareholders resolution of 18 May 2011, to purchase through the market 1,000,281 of the Company s ordinary
shares This authonty expires on 30 June 2012

The Directors believe that it is in the interests of the Company and its memisers to conhinue fo have the flexibility to
purchase its own shares and resolution 11 of the 2012 AGM seeks authority from members to allow the Company
to make market purchases, subject to the restrictions set out In the Nohce of Annual General Meeting, and In
particular to the maximum number of ordinary shares that may be purchased bemng 1,022 995, approximately
equal to 10% of the present issued share capital of the Company excluding treasury shares as at 21 March 2012
The Directars infend 1o renew this authonty annually but only fo exercise the authonty where, after considenng
market condihons prevaiing at the time, the Investment needs of the Company, its opportunities for expansion and
its overall inancial position, they believe the effect of such exercise would be to Increase the earnings per share
and be in the best interests of shareholders generally

Environment

The Group recognises the importance of its environmentat responsibiities monirtors 1its Impact on the environment,
and designs and implements policies to reduce damage that might be caused by the Group's activities Initigtives
designed to reduce the Group s Impact on the environment include safe disposal of manufactured waste,
recycling and reducing energy consumphion

Dunng 2011. the Group continued with its Energy Efficiency Programme achieving a reduchion in our Specific
Energy Consumphen of 7% compared to 2010 Since the inception of the Group’s Climate Change Agreement In
2000, we have achieved a total reduchon In Specific Energy Consumphon of more than 30%

Employees’ involvement

The Group recognises the importance of good communicathions with its employees and considers that the
most effective form of communication regarding its activiies, performance and plans 1s by way of informal daily
discussions between management and other employees During 2011, to complement these discussions, the
Group has confinued communicating information from Board level to all employees on a regular basis via a
programme of team briefings

Share ophon and profit related Incentive schemes are operated to encourage the iInvolvement of employees in

the Group’'s performance Portmernion Group UK Limited, the employer of the Group's UK based employees, 1s an
Investor in People The Directors are committed to the conhnuing development of the Group's employees via the
pnnciples of Investors in People See note 8 on page 51 for staff numbers and cosis
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Employment of disabled persons

It 1s the Group’s policy to give disabled people full and fair considerahon for all job vacancies for which they
offer themselves as surtable candidates having regard to therr parhicular aphitudes and abthties, Including

the consideration of any reasonable adjustments to the job or workplace Training and career development
opportunities are availlable to all employees and If necessary ali efforts are made fo retran any member of staff
who develops a disabiity during employment with the Group

Supplier payment policy

Payment ferms are agreed with each of the Group s major suppliers The Group abides by these terms provided
that the supplier also comphies with the agreed ferms and condiions The policy for other suppliers 1s generally to
make payment by the end of the month following receipt of a valid invoice All payment terms are stated at the
time orders are placed The number of days purchases represented by trade payables ot 31 December 2011 was
40 (2010 41) The Company has no trade payables

Financial position
The Group’s cash balance at 31 December 2011 was £6 8 millon (2010 £6 2 million)

Charntable and polihcal contributions

Contnibutions to various chanties In the form of goods to be used for chantable rafles amounted to £1,644

(2010 £2,164) at cost dunng the yeor In addiion cash donations of £1,200 (2010 £1,000) were made to registered
chanties There were no polihcal contributions durnng the vear

Auditors
Each of the persons who is a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

(1) so far as the Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit informahion of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware and

(2) the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Directer in order 1o make himself/
herself aware of any retevant audit Informotion and fo establish that the Company s auditors are aware of
that information

This confirmahon s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies
Act 2006

Mazars LLP have expressed their willingness to conhinue in office as auditors and a resolution to reappoint them will
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board
Vi

B.W.J. Phillips
Company Secretary
21 March 2012
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Introduction

As a company listed on the Alternative Investment Market (AIM), the Company is not required to comply with
Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (accounts and reports) Regulations 2008 (the
“Regulations™) under the Comparies Act 2006 (the "Act”) Whilst the Company i1s not required to comply with the
Regulahons, it has used the Regulations as best prachce guidance and voluntanly presented disclosures that reflect
the extent of the Company’s applicahon of the Regulahons A resolution to approve this report will be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company at which acpproval of the financial statements will be sought

Remuneration Committee
The members of the Remuneration Committee dunng 2011 are set out on page 13 The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available at www portmeinongroup com

R J Steele 1s Charman of the Remunerahon Committee The Board considers it appropnate that R J Steele with his
expenance Iin this area charrs this committee There have been no changes in the composition or Charmanship
of the Remuneration Committee dunng the year None of the Committee has any personal financial interest (other
than as shareholders), conflicts of interest ansing from cross-directorships or day to day involvement in running the
business The Committee makes recommendations fo the Board No Director plays a part in any discussion abouf
his or her own remuneration

Dunng 2011, Pinsent Masons LLP provided adwvice on the administration of the Company's share option plans In
determining the Directors’ remuneration for the year, the Committee consulted L F Bryan, Chief Executive, about its
proposals

The Committee meets at least twice a year to review and determine the remunerahion of the Executive Directors
During 2011. the Committee held three scheduled meetings In additicn, the Committee held meetings at other
times throughout the year fo deal with share ophon awards and exercises

Remuneration pohlicy

Executive remunerahon packages are prudently designed to aftract mohivate and retain Directors of high calibre
and o reward them for enhancing value to shareholders The performance measurement of the Executive Directors
and the determination of therr annual remuneration package s undertaken by the Remuneration Commitfee The
remuneration of the Non-executive Directors 1s defermmed by the Executive Directors There are five main elements
of the remuneration package for Executive Directors and senior management

Basic salary and benefits,
Annual incentive payments,
Share option incentives,
Long-term incentives, and
Pension arrangements

The Company s policy is that a substantial proportion of the remuneration of the Executive Directors should be
performance related in order to encourage and reward maximising business performance and shareholder retums
in determining the remuneraiion arrangemenits for Executive Directors the Committee 1s sensitive to pay and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group, especially when determining base salary increases
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The Company recognises that Execufive Directors may be invited to become non-executive directors of other
companes and that this can help broaden the skilis and expenence of a Director Executive Directors are entitled
to accept appointments outside the Group providing that the Charrman grants his permission B W J Phillips holds
directorships outside the Group which are detailled on page 13 B W J Phillips retains earnings in respect of his
directorship at Stafford Raillway Bullding Society As this was a recent appointment no earmings were paid cunng
the year ended 31 December 2011

The following table provides a summary of the key elements of the remuneration package for Executive Directors

Purpose

Operation

Base salary

To provide compehtive fixed remuneration
that will attract and retain key employees
and reflect therr expenence and position in
the Group

Reviewed annually taking inte account
incdustry standard executive remuneration
and pay levels elsewhere within the Group

Annual incentive

Recognises dchievement of annual
objechives which support the short to
medium term strategy of the Group

Based on achievement of a demanding profit
before tax and excephional tems target

Share Option Scheme

Seting value creahion through share price
growth as a major cbjective to Executive
Directors and senior managers Alignment
of opton holder interests with those of
shareholders through delivery of shares

Subject to earmings per share ("EPS")
performance measurement to reflect
operational performance as EPS 1s a
significant factor In determining the markeat’s
view of the Group's value

Deferred Incentive
Share Option Flan

Incentivising and refaining Executive
Directors whilst aligning therr interests with
those of shareholders through delivery and
retenhion of shares

Discretionary award over shares not
exceeding a market value of 20% of the gross
annual incentive payment earned by the
Executive Director In respect of the previous
financial year

Pension

Providing post relirement benefits

The Group operates defined contribuhion
pension schemes Previcus money purchase
plans and defined benefit pension schemes
have been frozen, 1 e closed to new members
and future accrual with preserved benefits

Basic salary and benefits
Solary 1s normally reviewed annually, on 1 January, or when responsibilihes change In deciding the appropnate
levels, the Commitiee takes into account factors which it considers necessary including ndustry standard executive
remuneration and comparable pay levels within the Group Each Executive Director I1s provided with health care
benefits The Chief Executive and Group Sales and Marketing Director are provided with a car

Annual incentive payments
Each Executive Director s remuneration package includes an annual incentive payment If the profit before tax and
exceptional items exceeds an annual farget, then an incentive will be paid The incentive 1s a percentage of the
Executive Director's basic pay which is inked o the amount by which profit before tax and excephonal tems exceeds
the target The maximum incentive payable 1s 100% of basic salary Dernanding budgets and fargets are established
by the Board and reviewed ot the end of each year to determine the degree of successful achievement
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Share options

The Company’s policy 1s to grant ophions to Executive Directors af the discretion of the Remuneration Committee
taking into account Individual performance 1 15 the Company s policy o phase the granting of share options
rather than to award them in a single large block to any individual

The Company has a share option scheme, The Portmeirnion 2002 Share Ophion Scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme™) which 1s a discretionary scheme, enabling the grant of options over ordinary shares in the Company fo
selected employees of the Portmeinon Group with flexibility for the grant of tax-favoured ophions

In respect of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, gamings per share has been selected as a measure of performance
as 1t directly reflects operational performance and 1s also a significant factor In determining the market's view of
the Group’s value The following performance critena are applicable to cutstanding optons under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme

® Ophons granted on 15 April 2008 can normally only be exercised where the pre-tax, pre-excephonal earnings
per share of the Group for the year ending 31 December 2010 exceeds 41 63p, being 120% of the pre-tax, pre-
excephonal earnings per share of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007 This performance criternion
has now been met,

@ Ophons granted on 28 May 2009 can normally only be exercised if the average of the pre-tax, pre-exceptional
earnings per share of the Group for each of the three years ending 31 December 2009, 31 December 2010 and
31 Decermnber 2011 exceeds 16 06p. being 113% of the pre-tax, pre-exceptional earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2008 This performance orifenon has now been met,

@® Ophons granfed on 29 March 2010 can normally only be exercised if the average of the pre-tax, pre-exceptional
earnings per share of the Group for each of the three years ending 31 December 2010, 31 December 2011 and
31 December 2012 exceeds 44 71p, being 113% of the pre-tax, pre-excephonal earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2009,

® Ophons granted on 28 April 2011 can nermally only be exercised if the average of the pre-tax, pre-exceptional
earnings per share of the Group for the each of the three years ending 31 December 2011, 31 December 2012
and 31 December 2013 exceeds 61 83p. being 113% of the pre-tax, pre-exceptonal earmings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2010

As the 2002 Share Ophon Scheme expires on 20 May 2612, authonty shall be sought from sharehelders af the Annual
General Meeting on 16 May 2012 to replace the 2002 Share Ophion Scheme with the proposed Portmeinon 2012
Approved Share Option Plan (the “2012 Approved Pian®) and the Portmeinon 2012 Unapproved Share Ophion Plan (the
*2012 Unapproved Plan” and, fogether with the 2012 Approved Plan, the *2012 Plans™), which will allow the Company to
cantinue to offer a discrehonary share ophon plan. with an element of fax advantage to the extent permitted under the
2012 Approved Plan Details of the 2012 Plans are included in the Nohce of Annual General Meeting

Long-term incentive schemes

The Portrmelnion Group 2010 Deferred Incentive Share Option Plan (the “2010 Deferred Incentive Plan™) was
established fo incenhvise and retain Executive Directors and encourage them to acquire and retain shares in the
Company The Plan operates in conjunchon with the Group’s exishing annuat incenfive arrangements

The 2010 Deferred Incentive Plan permits the grant of an opton to a participant in any year over shares with a
market vatue not exceeding 20% of the gross ncentive earned by the relevant employee in respect of the previous
financial year Ophions are exercisable normally only after the third anniversary of the date of grant On exercise,
provided that the participant is shif employed by the Groug (or has left due to Imited good leaver provisions as
spectied in the rules of the 2010 Deferred Incentive Plan) the parficipant will be entifled fo recews o "grossed-up”
payment {t ¢ a payment which after discharge of necessary taxes (including Natonal Insurance contnbuhions)
leaves a net amount) sufficient to pay the taxes (including National Insurance contnbuhons) due in respect of
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the exercise of the ophon (subject to a cap on the moximum tax and Natonal Insurance rates covered) The
Remuneration Committee believes this payment 1s appropriate so as to ensure that the shares are acquired without
any need fo sell the shares to generate cash to cover tax kabiihies Ophons may be satisfied by an issue of shares
(including out of treasury)

Options under the 2010 Deferred Incentive Plan can only be granted to the extent performance targets relating
to the annual incentive payment arrangements are met The exercise of ophons granted under the 2010 Deferred
Incentive Plan are not, therefore, subject to the satisfaction of performance targets

Pensions
B W J Phillips and M Haynes are members of the Portmeinon Group UK Uimited Group Stakeholder Pension Plan, a

money purchase pension scheme Details of contnbutions paid by the Group into the Plan for the benefit of the
Directors are shown in the Directors’ emcluments table that follows

©n 31 October 2002 the Portmeinon Pottenes Pension Plan, a contracted-in money purchose occupational pension
plan, closed B WJ Philips was a member of the plan at that hme and holds preserved benefits On 5 April 1999, the
defined benefit UX pension scheme was frozen, 1 e closed fo new entrants and to future accrual B WJ Phillips was
a member of the scheme at that hme and holds preserved benefits

L F Bryan receives pension contributions for a money purchase pension operated by the Group in the United States
Annual performance related incentives are not subject to contributions by the Group to the money purchase
pension arrangements maintained for the Directors

Directors’ contracts
It 1s the Company’s policy that Executive Directors should have contracts with an indefinite term providing for o

maximum of one year's notice

The details of the Executive Directors’ contracts are summansed in the table below

Date of Notice

Contract Penod

L F Bryan 08 11 2002 12 menths
M Haynes 01 01 2007 12 months
B WJ Phillips 15 03 2000 12 months

In the event of early fermination, the Directors’ contracts provide for compensahon of an amount equal to the
gross salary and benefits that the executive would have received dunng the balance of the nohce penod, plus any
incentive once declared, fo which he would have become enhtled had contractuatl notice been given

L F Bryan, Lady Judge, J Keng and R J Steele are proposed for reelection at the next Annual General Meeting They
all have contracts which provide for a nohice pernod of twelve months
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Non-executive Directors

All Non-executive Directors have service contracts with an indefintte term providing for a maximum of one year's
notice, without hability for compensation Therr remuneration 1s determined by the Board taking infoe account therr
duties and the level of fees paid to Non-executive Directors of similar companies The Non-executive Directors do
not parhcipate in the Company s annual incentive, share ophon or long-term incentive schemes and no pension
contnbuhons are made 1in respect of them

Aggregate Directors’ remunerahon
The fotal amounts for Directors’ remuneration were as follows

2011 2010
[~ g
Emoluments 1,577,825 1.425,371
Money purchase pension contrbutions 56,111 46 382
1,633,936 1,471,753
Directors’ emoluments
Gamns
made on
exercise Pension
Salary of share contrr- 2011 2010
& fees Benefits  Incentive options Subtotal butions Total Total
g < e < < T < <
Executive
L F Bryant™ 301.179 20,797 188,237 173.866 684 079 15,856 699,935 647,020
M Haynes 166,688 8,816 104,180 122,550 402,234 17.732 419,966 333,868
BWJ Phillips 173,250 7.281 113,281 64,350 358,162 22 523 380,685 363,865
Non-executive
Lady Judge® 27.300 - - - 27,300 - 27.300 26,000
J Kong 27,300 - - - 27.300 - 27.300 26 000
R J Steele® 78,750 - - - 78,750 - 78,750 75,000

774,467 36,894 405,698 360,766 1.577.825 56.111 1.633,936 1.471.753

Notes

@ L F Bryan s remunerated in US dollars and his remuneraticn is translated into stering atf the average exchange
rate for the year in 2011 This was $1 6037 /€ (2010 $1 5454/5)

@ The remuneration for Lady Judge was made to BTJ Consulting Limited in respect of her services

@& The remuneration for R J Steele was made to Adsum Lirmited in respect of his services

The benefits shown above anse from the provision of a company car, life assurance, permanent disability snsurance
and pnvate medical insurance
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Directors’ pension entittements

B WJ Phillips 1s @ memkber of the Group's defined benefit pension scheme which was frozen on 5 April 1999 He had

accrued entitlements under the scheme as follows

Increase In
Accrued accrued Accrued
pension at pension in pension at
01011 the year 31.12.11
£ < £
B W. Phulhps 23,463 794 24,257
Notes

1 Inflchon has been taken to be 3 1% for the purposes of adjusting last year's accrued pension in excess of
Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP), being the increase In the Consumer Pnces Index for the relevant penod,

with GMP subject to fixed increases of 6 25% pa

2 The pension accrued to 31 December 2011 allows for the cessahon of benefit accrual on 5 April 1999 Only

statutory revaluahon has been altowed from that date

His accrued benefits under the scheme were as follows

Decrease
Transfer n transfer Transter
value at value in value at
010111 the year 31.12.1%
£ < £
B WJ Phillps 555 566 (7.399) 548,167
Notes

The transfer values were calculated on a basis In accordance with the Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer

Values) Regulations 1996 (51 1996/1847)
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Directors’ share options and long term incentives
Aggregate emoluments disclosed above do not include any amounts for the value of options to acquire ordinary
shares in the Company granted to or held by the Directors

Detanls of ophions held under the 2002 Share Ophon Scheme by Directors who served dunng the year are as follows

Dates on

At Number of Ophons At  Exercise which exercisable
Director 010111  Granted Exercised Surmendered  31.12.11 price Ecrliest Latest
L F Bryan 57.144 - (57.144) - - 3450p 01042010 0304 2011
L F Bryan 38000 - (38.000) - - 2600p 16042011 14042012
L F Bryan 70000 - - - 70.000 197 5p 29052012 27052019
L F Bryan 70.000 - - - 70.000 3745p 30032013 2803 2020
M Haynes 45,000 - (45.000) - - 3450p 01042010 0304201
M Haynes 24,000 - (24.000) - - 2600p 16042017 1404 2012
M Haynes 45,000 - - - 45,000 197 5p 29052012 27052019
BWJ Philips 45,000 - (45.000) - - 3450p 01042010 03042011
B WJ Phillips 24 000 - - - 24,000 2600p 16042011 14042012
B WJ Phillips 45,000 - - - 45,000 197 5p 29052012 27 052019
B WJ Phillips 45 000 - - - 45,000 3745p 30032013 28 03 2020
Notes

1 The performance cntena affaching to share ophions are detailed on page 22
2 The Company’s share price reached a high of 530 Op and a low of 412 5p dunng 2011 The average share price

during 2011 was 475 6p The share price on 31 December 2011 was 415 0p

3 There have been no changes to the Directors” interests in the shares or options over shares of the Company
between 31 December 2011 and 21 March 2012

Details of the cphons exercised under the 2002 Share Opfion Scheme dunng the year are as follows

Number of Market Galns on Gains on

Date of options Exercise prnce on Gamns on exercise exercise

Director exercise  exercised prce exercise exercise 2011 2010
L F Bryan 01 04 20N 57,144 345 0p 488 Op £81,716

L F Bryan 18 04 2011 38 000 260 Op 502 5p £9215)0 £173.866 £17,142
M Haynes 01 04 2011 45 000 345 0p 488 Op £64 350

M Haynes 18 04 2011 24,000 260 Op 502 5p £58.200 £122,550 £19.500

BWJ Phillps 0104 2011 45,000 345 Op 488 Op <64 350 £64,350 <6 250




Portmeirnon Group PLC 27
www portmeincngroup com

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Detaills of options held under the 2010 Deferred Incentive Pian by Directors who served durnng the year are as

(0]
follows 8
o]
Dates on §
At Number of options Al which exercisable 2
Director 010111 Granted Exercised Surendersd 31.12.11 Earliest Latest o
L F Bryan 13,654 - - - 13,654 28052013 25082013 =1
L F Bryan - 11,730 - - 11,730 15042014 1307 2014 o
M Haynes 6.948 - - - 6,948 28052013 25082013
M Haynes - 5911 - - 5911 15042014 1307 2014
B w.J Phillips 7,750 - - - 7.750 28052013 25082013
B W.J Philips - 6,502 - - 6,502 1504 2014 13 07 2014
Notes
1 The exercise price payable by the ophon holder to acquire shares upon the exercise of a 2010 Deferred
Incentive Plan option 1s €1 1n respect of all of the shares under option for that particutar award 8
2 There were no ophions exercised under the 2010 Deferred Incentive Plan durnng the year g
c
Approval %
Thus report was approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by 0]
e P 3
B.W.J. Phillips
Cormpany Secretary

21 March 2012
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Corporate Governance Statement

As a company hsted on the Alternahve Investment Market (AIM) the Company Is not required to adhere to the

UK Carporate Governance Code June 2010 (“the Code™) Whilst the Company 1s hot required to comply with the
Code, it has used the Code as best practice guidance and voluntarly presented disclosures that reflect the extent
of the Company’s application of the Code

The Board

The Company 1s controlled by the Board of Directors The Board comprises three Executive and three Non-executive
Birectors The Board considers affer careful review that the Non-executive Directors bring an mdependent
judgement to bear notwithstanding therr length of service The Board has considered the need for progressive
refreshing of the Board in formulating this view All Non-executive Directors have contracts which expire on the
completion of one years notice These are availlable for iInspection at the Company’s registered office and at the
Annual General Meeting All Directors rehire no later than at the thurd annual general meeting of the Company

after the general meeting ot which he/she was appointed or last reappoainted in accordance with the Company’s
Arficles of Association aond the principles of the Cade All Non-executive Cirectors of the Company who have served
for more than nine yaars offer themselves for re-election annually All Directors undergo a perforrmance evaluation
before being proposed for re-elechon to ensure therr performance continues to be effechve, that where appropriate
they maintain therr ndependence and that they are demonsirating continued commitment to the role

R J Steele the Non-executive Chairman, is responsible for the running of the Board and L F Bryan, the Chief
Executive, has executive responsibility for running the Group's business and implementing Group strategy Following
the appointment of R J Steele as Non-executive Chairman on 30 April 2007, the Board has not appointed a Senior
Non-executive Director The Board beleves that, given ifs size, there 1s sufficient opportunity for shareholders to raise
any concems they may have with the Non-executive Chairman, Chief Executive, Group Finance Director or the
other two Non-execuhive Directors The Board mests at least five tmes each year and has a formal schedule of
matters reserved fo it It 1s responsible for overall Group strategy, approval of mgjor capital expenditure projects
approval of the annual and intenm results, annual budgets, dividend policy, and Board structure it monitors the
exposure to key business risks and reviews the strategic direction of all frading subsidianes, their annual budgets,
ther performance in relation to those budgets and ther capital expenditure

All Directors receive regular and hmely informahon on the Group’s operational and financial performance Relevant
information 1s circulated to the Directors In advance of meetings In addihon, minutes of the meehings of the
Directors of the main UK subsidiary are circulated to the Group Board of Directors All Directors have direct access
to the advice and services of the Company Secrefary and are able to take independent professional advice in the
furtherance of therr duties f necessary, at the Company's expense
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The following table shows the attendance of the Directors at meetings of the Board and s pnincipal committees
dunng 2011

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee
Total meetings held 5 3 3 2
Meetings attended
R J Steele (Non-executive Chairman) 5 3 3 2
L F Bryan (Chief Execuhive) 5 3* 1* 2
M Haynes (Group Sales and Marketing Director) 5 3 - 1*
Lady Judge (Neon-executive) 2 - 2 1
J Kong (Non-executive) 5 3 2
BWJ Philips (Group Finance Director and
Company Secretary) 5 3 - 1

Notes

During the year addihional Board and Remuneration Commiftee meetings were held and attended by a duly
authorsed committee of members of the Board principally to discuss share option matters

* Meetings which the Director aftended, in whole or in part by invitahon

Durnng the year the Board carned out an evaluation of its own performance, taking info account guidance
included in Suggeshions for Good Practice from the Higgs Report and the Financial Reporting Council’s Guidance
on Board Effectiveness The Board concluded that it had performed effectively Dunng the year appraisals were
carned out with the Directors The Group Finance Director and Group Sales and Marketing Director were appraised
by the Chief Executive who, In tum was appraised by the Charman Additionally, the Charrman appraised the
Non-executive Directors The Non-executive Directors appraised the Charman's performance without the Chairman
being present

Nomination Commitiee

The Nomination Committee 1s chared by R J Steele and compnses all the Nonexecutive Directors and the Chief
Executive It leads the precess and makes recommendations to the Board on all new Board appointments Where
new Board appointments are considered the search for candidates shall be conducted, and appointments made,
on ment, against objective critena and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board, including gender
The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year and clso considers the re-election of Directors retiring

by rotation and succession planning The Company s Aricles of Associaton require that each Director, including
Executive Directors shall subrnit nmself/herself for re-election every three years In addition, the Board has taken

the decision that Nen-Executive Directors who have served on the Board for more than nine years will be subject to
annual re-elechon

Remuneration Commitee

The Remuneration Committee 1s chared by R J Steele and compnses all the Non-executive Directors The Board
considers it appropnate that R J Steele with his expenence in this area chairs this committee The Remuneration
Commiftee 1s responsible for making recommendations to the Board in relahon to all aspects of remunerction for
Executive Directors The Remuneration Committee believes that the presence of the Chief Executive 1s important
when determining the remunerahon of the other Executive Directors The Chief Executive does not participate in
discussions relating to his persona! remuneration In framing its policy the Remuneration Committee takes into
account any factors which it deems necessary, including industry standard executive remuneration differentials
between executive and employee remuneration and differentials between execuhives When designing schemes
of perfformance related remuneratien the Remuneration Committee considers the provisions in Schedule A to the
Code The remunerahion of the Non-executive Directors 1s determined by the Executive Directors
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Audit Committee

The Aucit Committee 1s chaired by R J Steele and comprises all the Non-executive Direciors The Board considers
it appropnafe that R J Steele with his expenence and expertise in this area chairs this committee The Audit
Committee meets ot least three times each year it considers any matter relating to the financial affarrs of the
Group and fo the Group's external audit that it determines to be desirable In particular the Commitiee overviews
the monitoring of the adequiacy of the Group s Infermnal controls, accounting policies and financial reporting and
provides a forum through which the Group’s external auditors report fo the Non-executive Directors

The Audit Commiitee reviews arrangements by which employees of the Group may, in confidence, raise concerns
about possible impropneties In matters of financial reporting or other matters, so seeking to ensure that appropnate
arrangements are in place for the proportionate and independent investigation of such concerns and for
appropnate follow-up action

Internal control
The Board acknowledges that 1t is responsible for the Group s system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness

An ongoing process for iIdentifying, evaluating and managing the significant nsks faced by the Group has
been in place throughout the financial year and has remained in place up to the approval date of the report
and accounts That process 1s regularly reviewed by the Board and accords wath the internal control guidance
publshed in October 2005 (the *Turnbull Guidance™)

The Board intends to keep 1ts nsk control procedures under constant review particularly with regard fo the need fo
embed mternal control and nsk maonagement procedures furiher into the operahons of business, both IN the UK
and overseas. and to deal with areas of mprovement which come to management’s and the Board’s attention

As might be expected in a Group of this size, a key control procedure 1s the day to day supervision of the business
by the Executive Directors, supported by the senior managers with responsibility for key operations

The Executive Directors are invelved in the budget sething process, constantly monitor key performance indicators
and review management accounts on a menthly basis, noting and investigating mayor varnances All significant
caprtal expenditure decisions are approved by the Board as a whole

The Group's significant nsks, together with the relevant contfrol and montonng procedures, are subject to regular
review fo endble the Board 1o assess the effechiveness of the systemn of Infernal control The adequacy of internal
conirols with regard to the nsks identified are reviewed at every Board meeting The Board has also specifically
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal financial controls Dunng the course of its reviews the Board has
not iIdentfied nor been advised of any fallings or weaknesses which it has determined to be significant

The Board has considered the need for an internal audit funchion, but has decided that, because of the size of the
Group and the systems and controls in place, it 1s hot appropnate at present The Board will review this on a regular
basis

The Group’s systemn of Intemal control 1s designed to identfy fraud or matenal error and manage rather than
eliminate the nisk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance agamnst matenal misstatement or 1oss
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The Audit Committee 1s responsible for keeping under review the nature and extent of non-audit services provided
by the external audiors in order to ensure that objectvity and independence are mantamed For non-audit work,
the policy 15 thaf the Group does not use the external auditors unless they have the necessary skills and expenence
to make them the most suifable suppher There are appropnate safeguards in place to eliminate or reduce fo an
acceptable level any threat to the objechvity and independence of the external auditor in the provision of non-
audit services Fees paid to the auditors for non-audit services are disclosed in note 9 on page 51

The external auditors have 1N place processes to ensure therr Independence 1s maintained including safeguards to
ensure that, where they do provide non-audit services their independence 1s not threatened They have written to
the Committee confirming that in their opinion, they are independent

Conflicts of Interest

In ine with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Directors have put in place a policy and process
for notifying and recording the nature and extent of their interests, together with those of connected persons, In
organisations and companies outsicde the Group Each Director must formally notify the Company if there 1s the
potential for these inferests to conflict with their duties as a Director of the Company All such notifications are
regularly reviewed by the Board

Relahons with shareholders

The Group encourages two way communications with both its inshitutional and private investors and responds
quickly to all quenes received The Chairman talks regularly with the Group’s major shareholders and ensures that
their iews are communicated fully to the Board The Non-execuhve Directors are offered the opportunity to attend
meetings with major shareholders All shareholders receive notice of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM™) at which
the chairmen of all Committees will be available for questions

The Board recognises the AGM as an important opporfunity to meet pnvate shareholders At its AGM, which 1s
chaired by the Charrman the Company complies with the provisions of the Cede relating to the notice penod
required, disclosure of proxy votes, the separation of resolutions and the aftendance of committee chairmen The
Directors are available to histen fo the views of shareholders informally immediately following the AGM

Financicl Reporhing
The Board seeks to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s posthon and prospects
Details are given in the Business Review on pages 8 fo 11
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report, Directors’ Remunerafion Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requrres the Directors to prepare financial stafements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with Infernational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that IFRS financial statements present farrly for each financial year
the Group's financial position, financial performance and cash flows This requires the fair representation of the
effects of fransactions other events and conditions In accordance with the definihions and recogrimion cntena for
assets llabilihes, income and expenses set out In the International Accounting Standards Board s “Framework for
the preparation and presentahon of financial statements”™ In virtually all circumstances, a farr presentation will be
achieved by compliance with all applicable IFRS Directors are alsc required to

@ properly select and apply accounting peolicies,

@ present information, Including accounting policies, In a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information, and

@ provide addihonal disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements In IFRS are insufficient to enable
users 1o understand the impact of particular trensactons, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial
posttion and financial performance

The Directors have elected to prepare the Company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Prachice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) The
Company financial statements are required by law to give a frue and fair view of the state of affarrs of the
Company In preparnng these financial statements, the Directors are required to

® select surtable cccounting policies and then apply them consistently,

® make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

@ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements, cnd

® prepare the financial statements on the going concearn basis unless 1t 1s Inappropricate fo presume that the
Company will continue In business

The Drrectors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial posihion of the Company and enable them to ensure that the Company financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other rregularities

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial informahon included
on the Group's website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legisiation in other junsdichcns
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Portmeinon Group PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Portmeinon Group PLC for the year ended 31 December 2011

which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity the

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows the Company Reconciliation of Movements In Shareholders' Equity

and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the

Group's financial statements 15 applicable law and Infernahional Financial Reporting Sfandards (IFRS) as

adopted by the European Union The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparahon of
the Company financial statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {(United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibiliies set cut on page 32 the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial staterments and for being sahisfied that they give a frue and
fair view

Cur responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements In accordance with

applicable iaw and Infernational Standards on Audting (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us fo

comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors This report 1s made solely to the
Company’'s membaers as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Qur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required

to state to them In an auditer’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
aceept or assume responsibility 1o anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body for
our audit work, for this report, or for the cpinions we have formed

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A descrniphion of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB’s website at www frc org
uk/apb/scope/pnvate cfm

Opinion on the financial statements
in cur opinion

@ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Company’s affairs as at
31 December 2011 and of the Group s profit for the year then ended,

® the Group financial stafements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the
European Union

@ the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

@ ihe financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
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Independent Auditors’ Report continued

Opinion on other matters prescnbed by the Comparues Act 2006
In our opinion the Informaotion given in the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report 0 you I, In our opInicn

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our oudit have not
been received from branches not visited by us, or

the Company inancial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specried by law are not made, or

we have not received all the information and explanatons we require for our audit

Paul Lucas (Senior Statutory Auditor)

tor and on behalf of Mazars LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
45 Church Street

Brmingham

21 March 2012




Portmeirion Group PLC 35
www portmeinongroup com

Consolidated Income Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010

(0]
Notes £000 €000 o
Revenue 4,5 53,610 51,243 g
Operating costs o] (47.326) (45.728) o
Operating profit before exceptional items 6,284 5515 E
a
Operating exceptional items 7 - (199) g
Operating profit after operating exceptional items 6,284 5,316
Investment revenue 4,10 42 8
Finance costs 1n (65) (182)
Share of profit of associated underiakings 69 107
Profit before tax 6,330 5 249
Tax 12 €1.861) (1.774)
Profit for the year attributable to equily holders 25 4,469 3,475 8
c
Eamings per share 14 43.94p 34 91p g
Diluted earmings per share 14 43.12p 34 39p o
Dividends paid and proposed per share 13 19.60p 17 40p 8
5
All the above figures relate to continuing operations Q
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2011

201 2010

Notes £'000 £000

Profit for the year 4,469 3.475

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 26 81 253
Actuanal loss on defined benefit pension scheme 30 (1,642) (1.606)

Deferred tax on other comprehensive ncome 23 281 542
Other comprehensive iIncome for the year (1.280) (811)

Tolal comprehensive income for the year atfributable to equity holders 3,189 2,664
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

371 December 2011

2011 2010

[4)]

Notes £000 £'000 e
Non-current assets g
Intangible assets 15 1,819 2,038 o
Property. plkant and equipment 16 5.975 6,159 5
Interests 1n associates 17 1,534 1,472 a
Deferred tax asset 23 861 710 8
Total non-current assets 10,189 10 379
Current assets
Inventonies 18 12,470 9,655
Trade and other recevables 19 7.515 7.702
Cash and cash equivalents 20 6,777 6,249
Total current assets 26,762 23,606
Total assets 36,951 33,985
Current liobilities
Trade and other payables 22 (6.822) (7.204) @
Current iIncome tax abilities (825) {300) 8
Total current liabilities (7.647) (7.504) g
Non-current liabilities g
Pension scheme deficit 30 (4.868) (4,.302) o
Grant received (39) (57) (:')_
Total non—current liabilities {4,907) (4.359) 8
Total liabilities (12,554)  (11,863)
Net assets 24,397 22,122
Equity
Called up share capital 24 536 528
Share premium account 25 5,542 4,951
Treasury shares 25 (931) (1.047)
Share-based payment reserve 25 429 267
Translation reserve 26 1,122 1.040
Retained earnings 25 17.699 16,383
Total equity 24,397 22,122

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 21 March 2012
They were signed on its behalf by
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Share-
Share based
Share premium  Treasury poyment Tonslohon Retained
capial cccount shares reserve reserve  earnings Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000

Af 1 January 2010 528 4,820 (1 202) 159 630 15,551 20,486
Profit for the year - - - - - 3.475 3.475
Other comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 410 (1.221) 811
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 410 2,254 2,664
Dividends paid - - - - - (1.607) (1.607)
Increase in share-based
payment reserve - - - 108 - - 108
Shares issued under
employee share schemes - 131 155 - - - 286
Deferred tax on share-
based payment - - - - - 185 185
At 1 January 2011 528 4,951 (1,047) 267 1,040 16,383 22,122
Profit for the year - - - - - 4,469 4,469
Other comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 82 (1.362) (1.280)
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 82 3.107 3.189
Dividends paid - - - - - (1.780) (1,780)
Increase in share-based
payment reserve - - - 162 - - 162
Shares 1ssued under
employee share schemes 8 591 116 - - - 715
Deferred tax on share-
based payment - - - - - (1) (1)
At 31 December 2011 536 5,542 {931) 429 1,122 17.699 24,397
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 December 2011

201 2010

o
£'000 € 000 2

Operating profil after operating exceptional items 6,284 5316 g
Adjusiments for S
Depreciation of property. plant and eguipment 784 772 E
Armorhisation of iIntangible assets 346 357 a
Contnbutions fo defined benefit pension scheme (1.054) (951) 8
Charge for share-based payments 162 108
Exchange loss Qo) Q9
Loss on sale of tangible fixed assets 1 77
Opetating cash flows before movements in working capital 6,513 5,660
Increose in inventfories (2.729) (795)
Decrease/(increase) in recewables 202 570y
(Decrease)/Iincrease N payables (410) 2,032
Cash generated from operations 3.576 6,327
Interest pand (59) (160) @
Income taxes paid (1.217) (1.676) g
Net cash from operating activities 2.300 4,491 2
Investing activities El;)
Interest recewed 20 8 O
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1 84 (2
Purchase of property plant and equipment 597) (1.474) 8
Purchase of infangible assets {127) -
Net cash outflow from investing actvities {703) (1.380)
Financing activities
Equity dividends pad (1.780) (1.607)
Repuyments of bank loans - (1.047)
Shares 1ssued under employee share schemes 715 286
Net cash outflow from financing activities (1.065) (2 368)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 532 743
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6,249 5,43%¢
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ) &7
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 6,777 6,249
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Basis of preparation

Portmeinon Group PLC 1s a Company incorporated in England and Wales The address of the registered office
Is given on page 78 The nature of the Group's operations and its principal activities are set out In the Report
of the Drrectors on pages 1410 19

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounhng standards adopted for use In the
European Urnion (Internahonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS))

The going concern basis has been considered In the Report of the Directors on page 15

These financial stafements are presented In pounds sterling because that 1s the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates Foreign operahions are included in accordance with the
policies set out in note 25

In the current year, the following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted but have
not made any significant impact on the amounts reported 1in these financial statements but may iImpact the
accounting for future transactions and arrangements

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing financial Liabilhes with Equity Instruments

IFRS 3 (amended) Business Combinahons

IFRS 7 (amended) Financral Instruments Disclosures

IFRS 1 (amended) Lirmifed Exemption from Comparafive IFRS 7 Disclosures for First-tme Adopters
IAS 24 (2009) Related Party Disclosures

IAS 32 (amended) Classification of fights issues

IFRIC 14 (amended) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirerment

Improvemenits 1o IFRSs 2010

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations
which have not been applied in these financial statements were In 1ssue but not yet effective (and In
some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU)

IFRS 1 (amended) Severe Hyperinfiation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-hme Adoplers
IFRS 7 (amended) Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets

IFRS @ Financial instruments

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Staternents
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Inferests in Other Entities
{FRS 13 Far Volue Measurement

IAS1 (amended)  Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income
IAS 12 (amended) Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets

1AS 12 (revised) Employee Benefits

IAS 27 (revised) Separafe Financial Statements

IAS 28 (revised) investments in Associales and Joint Ventures

IFRIC 20 Stnpping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

2.1

22

Basis of preparation continued

The Drectors anhcipate that the adophon of these Standards and Interpretations in future periods will have no
matenal impact on the financial statements of the Group, except as follows

- I1AS 19 (rewised) will impact the measurement of the varnous components representing movements in the
defined benefit pension cbligation and associated disclosures but not the Group's total obhgotion 1t s
likely that following the replacement of expected returns on plan assets with a net finance cost In the
income statement, the profit for the year will be reduced and accordingly other comprehensive income
ncreased

Significant accounting policies

The accountng policies which follow set ouf those policies which were applied in preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

The financial statements have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis

Basls of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Portmennon Group PLC

and its subsidianes The Group's share of the results and retained earnings of asseciated undertakings 1s
included

Subsidiary undertakings are consolidated on the basis of the acquisthon method of accounting Intra-group
transactions and balances are ebminated fully on consehdation and the conselidated accounts reflect
external transachons only Subsidicnes’ accounting policies are amended where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

All accounts for subsidiaries and associated companies have been prepared for the year ended

31 Cecember 2011 except for the accounts of Portmeinon Finance Limited which have been prepared for the
year ended 7 January 2012 and the accounts of Portmenon Canada Inc which have a year end of 30 June

2011 The Group accounts include intenm financial informahon to 31 December 2011 for Portmertnon Finance

Limited and Portmeinon Canada Ine

Investment In associated undertakings (“associates”)

An associate 1s an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that s neither a subsidiary nor an
inferest n a joint venture Significant influence s the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but 1s not control or joint control over those policies

The results and assets and labihties of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using

the equity method of acceunting Under the equity method, investments in associates are camed in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acquisthon changes in the Group's share of the net
assets of the associate, less any imparrment In the value of Indimdual investments

Where a Group company fransacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's Interest In the relevant associate
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2.4

25

Significant accounting policies confinued

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the far value of the consideration recewved or receivable and represents amounts
recewable for goods and sernces provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other
salesrelated taxes

Sales of goods are recogrised when goods are delivered and title has passed

Interest ncome 1s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal cutstanding and at the effective
interest rate apphcable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estmated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net canrying amount

Royalty revenue 1s recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreement

Royalhes determined on a time basis are recognised on a straightding basis over the penod of the agreement

Operaling leases
Rentals payable or receivable under operating leases are charged or credited 1o ncome on a straightHine
basis over the term of the relevant lease

In the event that legse Incenhves are recewved fo enter into operating leases, such iIncentives are recognised
as a hability The aggregate benefit of iIncentives 1s recognised as ¢ reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease

Foreign currencies

The indmidual financial statements of each Group company are presented in the currency of the prnmary
economic environment In which it operates (its funchional currency) The results and financial posifion of each
Group company are expressed in pounds sterbng which i1s the funchonal currency of the Company and the
presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements

In prepanng the financial statements of the INndividual companies, transachons in currencies other than
the enfity s funchional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevaiing
on the dates of the fransachons At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and labiihies that are
denominated in foreigh currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date Non-monetary
tems that are measured in terms of histoncal cost in a foreign curency are not retranslated

Exchange differences ansing on the settlement of monetary fems and on the refransiation of monetary items,
are included in profit or loss for the year

In order to hedge 1ts exposure to certain foreign exchange nsks, the Group enters iInto forward contracts
(see below for detalls of the Group s accounting policies In respect of such derivative financial
instruments)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date Income and
expense tems are transiated af the average exchange rates for the pencd Exchange differences ansing, if
any, are recognised IN other comprehensive ncome and accumulated in equity
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2. Signiticant accounting policies continued

2.6 Operating profit

Operating profit 1s stated both before and affer excephonal items but before Investment revenue, inance costs
ond share of profit of associated undertakings

2.7 Group pension schemes
Poyments to defined contnbuhon retirement schemes are charged as an expense as they foll due

Our Performance

For defined benefit schemes the cost of providing benefits I1s deterrmined using the defined accrued benefit
rmethod, with actuaral valuations being carried out ot least tnrennially and updated at each balonce sheet
date Actuanal gans and losses are recognised in full in the penod in which they occur They are recogrised
outside profit or loss and presented In other comprehensive Income

Past service costs are recogrised immedialely fo the extent that the benefits are already vested, and
otherwise are amorhised on a straight-ine basis over the average penod until the benefits become vested

The retrement benefit obligaton recognised In the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined
benefit obigation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost and as reduced by the farr value of scheme
assets

28 Taxalion
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currentty payable and deferred tax

Our Governance

Current tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the Income staternent because it excludes items of Income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deduchble The Group s
habilty for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

Deoferred tax

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and habilihes in the finoncial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computahon of taxable profit and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet hability method Deferred
tax habiihes are generally recognised for ali taxable tempaorary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised fo the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be avallable against which deductible
tfemporary differences can be uhilised Such assets and habilities are not recognised If the temporary
difference anses from the inihal recognition of goodwill or from the initicl recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and lilabilihies In a transachon that affects nether the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit
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Deferred tax habiities are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on invesiments in
subsidianes and associates, except where the Group 1s able to contro! the reversal of the femporary
difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse In the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced fo the
extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to cllow all or part of the
assef to be recovered
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Significant accounting policies continued

2.8 Taxation continued
Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the penod when the labihty 1s settled
or the asset I1s realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the Income statement. except when 1t relates to
items charged or credited in other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax 1s olso dealt with in
other comprehensive income

Deferred tax assets and habilhes are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets
against current tax habilities and when they relate fo iIncome taxes levied by the same taxation authornty and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabiliies on a net basis

2.9 Property. plant and equipment
Freehold land 15 not depreciated

Property plant and equipment are held at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised
imparment losses

Depreciation 1s recogrised so as fo wrnte off the cost of assets (other than land) less ther residual values
over their useful Iives, using the straightine or the reducing balance method, on the following bases

Freehold buldings — 2% per annum
Leasehold improvements — over the ife of the lease
Plant and vehicles — 6% to 33% per annum

2.10 Intangible assels
Purchases of infellectual property are included at cost and wntten off in equal annual Instalments over therr
estimated useful economic life of 5-10 years Prowision 1s made for any impairment

Computer software is held at cost less accumulated amortisation less any recognised impairment losses
Amorhisaton 1s charged so as to wnte off the cost of assets less therr residual value over therr useful lives,
using the straight-ine method The estimated useful ife of computer software 1s between three and

ten years

2.11 impairment of tangible and intangible assets
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amoeunts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there 15 any iIndication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any
such indication exisis the recoverable amount of the asset I1s estimated in order to determine the extent of the
imparment loss

Recoverable amount 1s the higher of farr value less costs to sell and value In use In assessing value In use, the
eshmated future cash flows are discounted to therr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating urit) 1s eshmaled to be less than its carrying
ameunt, the carnrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s reduced fo ifs recoverable
amount An impairment 10ss 15 recognised as an expense immediately
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2. Significant accounting policies continued

2.11 Impgairment of tangible and intangible assets continued
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s
ncreased to the revised eshmate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
net exceed the carrying amount that would have been defermined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years A reversat of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately

2.12 Inventories
Inventenes are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost comprises direct matenals
and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bninging
the inventones to therr present location and conditien Cost 1s calculated using the werghted average
method Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all eshmated costs of completion and
costs 1o be incurred in marketing, selling and distnbution

2 13 Research and development
Expenditure on research achvities 1s recognised as an expense 1n the penod in which it 1s incurred

An infernally generated intangible asset ansing from the Group’s development activihes 1s recognised only If
all of the following condions are met

® an assets created that can be identfied (such as software or new processes),
® it s probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits, and
® the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably

2 14 Purchase of own shares
Investment In own shares has been classified as treasury shares These shares are valued at the weighted
average cost of purchase Treasury shares are a deduction from equity

2.15 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial iabilities are recognised in the Group's balance sheet when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Dernvafive financial instruments

The Group’s activiies expose it to the financial nsks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates The Group
uses foreign exchange forward contracts fo hedge this exposure The Group does not use denvative financial
nstruments for speculatve purposes

Changes in the fair value of denvative financiol Instruments that are designated and are effechive as
hedges of future cash flows are recognised directly i equity and the ineffective portion 1s recognised
immediately in the Income statement Amounts deferred in equity are recognised in the income
statement in the same penod in which the hedged item affects net profit or loss

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not qualfy for hedge accounting are
recognised in the income statement as they arise

Hedge accounting 15 discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 15 sold, terminated, or
exercised or no longer qualfies for hedge accounfing At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the
hedging mstrument recognised in equity 1s retained In equity until the forecasted transachon eccurs
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2. Significant accounting policles continued

2.15 Financial Instruments continued
Recevables
Trade recevables and other recevables that have fixed or deferminable payments that are not quoted in
an achive market are categonsed s loans and recevables These are mecsured ot amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly hauid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant nsk of
changes in value Cash and cash equivalents are categonsed as loans and recevables

Financial frabithes and equity

Financial habidities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into An equity instrument s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its iakiliies Equity instruments issued by the Group are recogrised at the
proceeds received, nef of direct 1ssue costs

Other financial labiliies including berrowings, are inthally measured at farr value, net of fransaction
costs Other financial iabilihies are subsequently measured at amorhsed cost using the effective interest
method. with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis

Further details on the Group's financial instrurments con be found in note 31

2.16 Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the farr value of the equity instruments at
the grant date The fair value excludes the effect of non market-based vesting conditions Details regarding the
determinahon of the far value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out In note 32

The fair value determined af the grant date of the equity-seftled share-based payments 1s expensed on
a straight-ine basis over the veshng penod based on the Group's eshmate of equity Insiruments that

will eventually vest At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estmate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non market-based vesting conditions The ympact
of the revision of the onginal estmates if any, 1s recogrised In profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised eshmate, with a corresponding adjustment to equity reserves

2.17 Grant income
Grant income relating to a commiiment fo employ iIndividuals 1s treated as deferred income and released 1o
the iIncome statfement once the contractual period has elapsed
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3. Crthical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

[0
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are descnbed in note 2, the Directors are g
required fo make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and =
habilities that are not readily apparent from other sources The eshmates and associated assumphons are é
based on histoncal expenence and other factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results may differ D
from these estimates 5
o
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviswad on an ongoing basis Revisions fo accounting
eshmates are recognised in the year in which the estimate 1s revised if the revision affects only that year, or in
the year of the revision and future years If the revision affects both current and future yecrs
Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies
The following are the cnhical judgements that the Directors have made in the process of applying the
Group's accounhng policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements ®
<
impcirment of inventory E
Provision 18 made for the impairment of slow-moving and obsolete inventory based on tustoncal and §
forecast sales and estimates of net realisable value The carrying value of mventory at the year end was 8
£12,470,000 (2010 £9.655,000) 5
o

Defined benefit pension scheme

The valuation of the Group's defined benefit pension scheme assets and habilities under IAS 19
Employee Benefits requires assumphions o be made regarding returms on assets, infiation, discount rates,
salary, mortality and pensicn increases The carrying value of the scheme liability at the year end was
£4,868,000 (2010 £4,302,000)

4. Revenue

An analysis of the Group’s revenue 13 as follows

=y

2011 2010 2

£'000 £ 000 g

Continuing operations c

Sale of goods 52,987 51,009 =

Royalhes 623 234 8
53,610 51,243
Investment income 42 8
53.652 51,251
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L Segmental analysis

IFRS 8 requires operating segments fo be idenhfied on the basis of iInfernal reports about the components of
the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Executive to allocate resources o the segments and to
assess ther performance Based upon the nature and extent of these internal reports, the Directors are of the
opinion that there are two reportable segments under IFRS 8 namely the UK and US operations The Directors
are of the opinion that only one class of business 1s being undertaken, that of the manufacture and sale of
ceramics and associated homeware

201 2010
Inter- Sales to Inter- Sales to
Total segment third Total segment fthurd
sales sales parties sales sales parhes
Revenue by origin £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 € 000
Unrted Kingdom 38,147 (5.709) 32,438 34,803 (4.558) 30.245
United States 21,172 - 21,172 20,998 - 20,998
59,319 (5.709) 53.610 55,801 (4.558) 51 243

Included in revenues ansing from the United Kingdom are revenues of £10,7292,000 (2010 £2.816,000) which
arose from sales to the Group's largest customer In South Korea

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's revenue by geographical market, irrespective of the
ongin of the products

201 2010
Revenue £'000 £ 000
United Kingdom 13,825 12,615
United States 21,351 21,210
South Korea 10,729 9.816
Rest of the World 7.705 7.602
53,610 51,243
2011 2010
Before Operahng Before  Operahing
exceplional exceptional excephonal  excephonal
items items Total frems tems Total
Operating profit by origin £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 < 000 £°000
United Kingdom 3,814 - 3.814 3.002 (199) 2,803
United States 2,470 - 2,470 2,513 - 2,513
Operating profit 6,284 - 6,284 5,515 (99 5316
Unallocated tems
Share of profit of associated
undertakings 69 107
Investment revenue 42 8
Finance costs {65) (182
Profit before tax 6,330 5,249
Tax (1,861) (1.774)

Profit after tax 4,469 3,475
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5.

Segmental analysis confinued

2011 2010
United United Con- United United Con-
Kingdom States solidated Kimngdom States solidated
Other information £'000 £'600 £'000 £'000 £'000 £ 000
Capital additions 662 62 724 807 667 1,474
Depreciation and amorhisation 962 168 1.130 G58 171 1.129
Balance sheet
Assots
Segment assets 26,447 8,970 35417 24,974 7.539 32513
Interests in associates 1,534 1,472
Consoldated fotal assets 36.951 33,985
Liabilities
Segment ligbilties 10.977 1.577 12,554 ?.579 2,284 11.863
There are no unallocated corporate labilities in 2011 and 2010
Reconciliation of earnings before exceplional items, interest, 2011 2010
tax, depreciation and amortisalion (Pre-exceptional EBITDA) £000 £'000
Operating profit before excephonal items 6.284 5,515
Add back
Depreciahon 784 772
Ameortisation 346 357
Earnings before exceptional items, nterest tox depreciation and amortisation 7.414 6 644
2011 2010
Profit before lax reconciliation £'000 £'000
Pre-tax profit before excephonal items 6,330 5,448
Operating excephional items (note 7) - (199}
Pre-tax profit after exceptional tems 6,330 5,249
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6,

Operating costs

2011 2010
Opergiing Operatng
Before exceptlional Before exceptional
exceptional fleins excephonal tems
flems (note7) Total tems (note 7) Total
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £'000
Cost of inventones
recognised as an expense 19.666 - 19.666 19.669 - 19,669
Movement on inventory
Impairment provision 707 - 707 87 - 87
Other external charges 9.452 - 9.453 2.574 199 9773
Staff costs (note 8) 16.059 - 16,059 14,938 - 14,938
Depreciation of property
plant and equipment 784 - 784 772 - 772
Amortisation of infangible assets 346 - 346 357 - 357
Imparrment of frade recewvables 176 - 176 51 - 51
Cost of research and
development 219 - 219 298 - 298
Net foreign exchange
(gans)/losses (65) - (65) 1 - 1
Government grants (4] - (19) a9 - a9
47,326 - 47,326 45 728 199 45,927

Excephonal items

The Directors define reorganisation costs as excephonal Specifically included under such exceptional items In
the comparative year are costs incurred 1n the early redempthion of a bank facility agreement

The analysis of excephonal iflems 1s as follows

2011 2010
Operaling exceplional items £'000 £'000
Facility redemption costs - 199

199
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8. Staff numbers and costs

(]

o

o]

20m 2010 E

Number Number £

The average number of persons employed durnng the year, including Directors 8

Qperatives 352 318 5

Salaned employees 227 214 O
579 532
£'000 £'000

Staff costs:

Wages and salanes 13,707 12,689
Social secunty costs 1,194 1.092
Defined contrnbuton pension costs 804 742
Nen-monetary benefits 354 415

16,059 14,938 g

g

The Company had no employees throughout 2011 or 2010 §

(o

Detatls of iIndividual Directors rernuneration, pension contribuhions and pension enfitlements required by the (Pj.

Companies Act 2006 are shown In the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 20 fo 27 together with detatls O

of Directors’ current share opfions

9. Auditors’ remuneration

2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Fees payable to the Group’s audifors for the audit of the
Group’s annual accounts 43 43
Total qudit fees 43 43 -g
5}
Fees payable to the Group’s audiors and their associates for other g
services fo the Group =
Other services - infenm review 6 é 5
Tax comphance services 8 8 O
Other services 9 28
Total non-audit fees 23 42
Fees payable to the Group’s auditors and their associates in
respect of associated pension schemes
Audit of the Portmeinion Potteries Limited Retirement Benefits Scheme 4 4
4 4

The audit fee for the Company was £1.500 (2010 £1,500)

Fees payable to Mazars LLP and therr associates for non-audit services to the Company are not required
fo be disclosed because the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a
consolidated basis

Shareholder Information



52

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Porimeinon Group PLC
Report and Accounts 2011

continued

10.

11.

12.

Investment revenue

2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Bank deposits 8 2
Defined benefit pension scheme - other income 22 -
Other interest receivable 12 6
42 8
Finance costs
2011 2010
£000 £'000
Interest paid 37 172
Losses on financial denvatives 28 -
Defined benefit pension scheme - other finance costs - 10
65 182
Taxation on profit on ordinary achvitles
2011 2010
£'000 £°000
Current taxation
United Kingdom corporahion tax at 26 5% {2010 28%) 759 617
Adjustment of corporation tax in respect of prior years (10) ()]
Qverseas taxation 293 855
1,742 1,468
Deferred taxation
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences (106) 65
Pension scheme 225 241
119 306
1,861 1,774

UK Corporation tax is calculated at 26 5% (2010 28%) of the estmated assessable profit for the year Taxation

for other junsdictions i1s calculated at the rates prevailing in the respechve junsdictions
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12. Taxation on profit on ordinary activities continued

@®
The standard rate of tax for the year, based on the UK standard rate of corporation tax 1s 26 5% (2010 28%) g
£
The actual tax charge for the curment and the previous year differs from the standard rate for the reasons set é
out in the following reconciiation 2
2011 2010 ._
£'000 £ 000 o
Profit on ordinary activihes before taxation 6,330 5,249
Tax on profit on ordinary actvihies of standard rate of 26 5% (2010 28%) 1.677 1.470
Factors affecting charge for the year
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes and other adjustments (122) 198
Srmall companies tax rehet 4) (6))]
Foreign tax charged at higher rates than UK standard rafe 336 155
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years (10) 4)
Difference relating to associates tax charge {(16) (40} 8
Total tax on profit on ordinary activibies 1.861 1.774 g
=
]
13. Dividends paid 3
o
5
2011 2010 o)
£'000 £'000

Final dividend of 13 50p per share paid in respect of the year ended 31 December

2010 (2010 final dividend of 12 25p per share paid In respect of the year ended

31 December 2009) 1,381 1.21¢9
Intenm dmidend of 3 90p per share paid In respect of the year ended 31 December

2011 (2010 intenm dividend of 3 90p per share in respect of the year ended

31 December 20106) 399 388
Total dividends paid in the year 1,780 1,607

The Dweclors recommend that a final dvidend for 2011 of 15 70p (2010 13 50p) per ordinary share

be pord, making a total for the year of 19 60p (2010 17 40p) per share The final dwvidend will be

paid, subject to shareholders” approval, on 23 May 2012, to shareholders on tha register at the close of
business on 27 April 2012 This dividend has not been included as a lability in these financial statements
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14.

15.

Earnings per share

The calculahon of basic and dituted earnings per share 15 based on the following dafa

2011 2010
Weighted Weighted
average Earnings average Earnings
Earnings number pershare Earnings number  per share
£ of shares {pence) < of shares {pence)
Basic earmnings per share 4,469,000 10,170,222 4394 3475000 9955349 349N
Effect of diluhve secunhes
employee share opfions - 192,786 - - 149,846 -
Diluted earnings per share 4,469,000 10,363,008 43.12 3,475,000 10,105,195 34 39
Infangible assets
Computer Intellectual
software property Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
AT January 2010 443 2,693 3.136
Disposals (64 - o
AL 1 Jonuary 2011 379 2693 3,072
Additions 127 - 127
At 31 December 2011 506 2,693 3,199
Amortisahon
At 1 January 2010 240 481 741
Charge for the year 36 321 357
On disposals (64) - (64)
Al 1 Januory 2011 232 802 1.034
Charge for the year 46 300 346
At 31 December 2011 278 1,102 1.380
Net book vailue
At 31 December 2011 228 1.591 1.819
At 31 December 2010 147 1,891 2.038

Included within inteliectual property are the nghts to certain intellectual property and the trade names of
Spode and Royal Worcester, purchased in Apal 2009 At the year end this had a carrying value of €1 521,000
(2010 £1.808,000) The remaining amortisahion penod 1s 7 years and 4 months

At 31 December 2011, the Group had entered info contractual commitments for the acquisition of iInfangible
assets amounting to €78 000 (2010 £nil)
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16. Property, plant and equipment o
2
Lond and buildings g
Leasehold ]
improve-  Plant and S
Freehcld ments vehicles Total a
£'000 5000 £'000 £ 000 3
Cost
At 1 January 2010 3.857 1.005 14714 19.576
Additions - 464 1.010 1,474
Disposals - 212) (3.378) (3.590)
Exchange rate adjustiments - (5) 21 16
At 1 January 2011 3,857 1252 12 367 17.476
Addrons - 16 581 597
Disposals - - a7) éan
Exchange rate adjustments - 5 8 13 8
At 31 December 2011 3.857 1,273 12,909 18.039 5
Depreciaton £
Af 1 January 2010 1472 580 11,213 13,965 g_’
Charge for the year 70 74 628 772 8
On disposals - (170) {3 257) (3 427) 5
Exchange rate adjustments - (1) 8 7 O
At 1 January 2011 1,542 483 9,292 11.317
Charge for the year 70 a4 630 784
On disposals - - (45) (45)
Exchange rate adjustments - 2 b 8
At 31 becember 2011 1,612 569 9.883 12,064
Net book vailue
Al 31 December 2011 2,245 704 3.028 5,975
At 31 December 2010 2315 769 3,075 6,159

At 31 December 2011, the Group had entered into contractual commitments for the ccquisibon of property,
plant and equipment amounhing to £35,000 (2010 £186 000)
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17. Inlerosts In associates

2011 2010
Associated undertakings £'000 £'000
Furlong Mills Lirmited
2 086 ordinary shares of €1 each representing 27 58% of the 1ssued share capital
Share of net assets 961 897
Discount on acquisihon a3 13
Imparrment of investment in Furlong Mills Lirited (309) (309)
639 575
Porimeinon Canada Inc
100 common shares representing 50% of the 1ssued share capital
Share of net assets 895 897
1,534 1.472
2011 2010
Aggregated amounts relating to assoctates £'000 £ 000
Total assets 7.313 7.090
Total habilities (1.697) (1.585)
Revenues 10,444 10,068
Profit before tax 352 585

A list of the significant investments in subsidianes and associates, Including the name country of incorporation
and proportion of ownership interest 1s given 1IN nofe ¢ to the Company’s separate financial statements on
pages 74 and 75

Portmenon Canada Inc has been accounted for as an associate ¢s 1t s Independently managed from
Canada, and with a 50% share of ownership the Directors consider that the Group asserts significant iInluence

but not joint control

18. Inventories

20M 2010

£000 £ 000

Raw maternals and other consumables 1,763 1,075
Work n progress a77 604
Finished goods 10,230 7.976

12,470 9.655
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19. Trade and other receivables

o
g
2011 2010 g
£'000 & 000 S
Arnounts receivable for the sale of goods 6,097 6,455 5
Allowance for doubtul debts (326) (237) o
Trade recevables 5,71 6,218 8
Amounts owed by associated undertakings 833 373
Other receivables 43 13
Prepayments and accrued income 868 1098
7,515 7.702
Generally no interest is charged on recevables, however, there s provision in the Group's terms and condiftons
for inferest to be charged on late poyments The clliowance for doubtful debts has been determimed by
reference fo past default expenence and a review of specific customers’ debts at the year end ©
o
Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with a carrying amount of £1,524,000 ‘é
{2010 £2,009,000) which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided as there has o
not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable The Group 3
does not hold any collateral over these balances The average age of these recevables i1s 54 days (2010 53 days) (2
>
2011 2010 o
Ageing of past due but not Impaired recelvables £'000 £°000
31-60 days 1,137 1,552
61-90 days 261 273
91+ days 126 184
Total 1,524 2,009
2011 2010
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts £'000 £'000
Balance af the beginning of the year 237 283 w
Impairment losses recognised 176 51 B
Amecunts wintten off as uncollectable (87) (?7) 8
Balance at the end of the year 326 237 2
L
3
In determining the recoverability of a trade recewvable the Group considers any change in the credit quality (@)

of the trade recewvable from the date credit was inhally granted up to the reporting date The concentration
of credit nsk 1s imited due to the customer base being large and unrelated Accordingly, the Directors believe
that there 18 no further credit provision requred in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts

2011 2010
Ageing of mdwidually impaired trade recevables £'000 £000
120+ days 108 142

Included In the allowance for doubtful debts are iIndmdually impared trade recevables with a balance of
£14,000 (2010 £9.000) which have been placed into iguidation The mpairment recogrused represents the
difference between the carying amount of these trade receivables and the present value of the expected
lquidation proceeds The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances
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The Dyectors consider that the camying amount of trade and other recevables approximates to therr far value
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20. Cash and cash equivalents

2011 200
£000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 6,277 6.249

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an
onginal matunty of three months or less The carrying amount of these assets approximates to their fair
vaiue
21. Borrowings
The Group has two faciliies
) A £2 000,000 overdraft facility availlable until 31 May 2012 Interest 1s payable at 1 75% on the net
pooled fund balance. plus bank base rate on net stering borrowings

b} A £2,000.000 revelving credt facility availlable until 31 May 2013 Interest 1s payable at 1 9% above
three month LIBOR

These facilines are secured by an unlirmted debenture from the Group and a first charge over Group
property

Neither of these facilities were being uhlised at 31 December 2011

22. Trade and other payables

2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Trade payables and accruals 5,785 6,124
Amounts owed o associated undertakings 44 100
Other taxahon and social security 413 439
Cther payables 580 541
6,822 7.204

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for frade purchases and ongoing
costs The average credit penod taken for trade purchases i1s 34 days (2010 35 days) For most suppliers

no interest I1s charged on the frade payables from the date of invoice to the end of the following month
Thereafter, iInterest may be charged on the oufstanding balances at vanous interest rates The Group’s policy 1s
o poy all payables within the credit imeframe

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to ther far value
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23. Defermred tax

24.

The following are the major deferred tax labities and assets recogrised by the Group and movements
thereon dunng the current and prior reporting years

Accelerated Retirement Share- Capital Other
tax benefit based gan lemporary
depreciation obligations payment  held over differences Total
£'000 £'000 Z'000 <000 £'000 $ 000
At 1 January 2010 (5626) 1.018 26 (387) 158 289
(Charge)/credit fo income (158) (241) 55 14 24 (306)
Credit 1o equity - - 185 - - 185
Credit to other
comprehensive Income - 385 - - 157 542
At 1 January 2011 (684) 1,162 266 (373) 339 710
Credit/{charge) to iIncome 47 (225) (19 27 151 QL))
Charge fo equity - - an - - an
Credit to other
comprehensive Income - 280 - - 1 281
At 31 December 2011 (637) 1.217 136 (346) 491 861

Certain deferred tax assets and labilities have been offset The following 1s the analysis of the deferred tax
balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes

2011 2010
£ 000 £'000
Deferred tax Labilties (983) (1,057}
Deferred tax assets 1,844 1,767
861 710

At the balance sheet date the Group had no unused tax trading or capital losses (2010 £nit) avallable for
offset agamst future profits

Tempoerary differences arising in connechon with inferests N associates and joint ventures are Nsigrificant

Share capital

2011 2010
Number Number
‘000 £'000 ‘000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid share capital
ordinary shares of 5p each 10,728 536 10.563 528

The market price of the Company's shares at 31 December 2011 was 415 Op per share Dunng the year the
pnce ranged between 412 5p and 530 Op per share

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry ne nght to fixed income

Dunng the year the Company issued 165,144 new ordinary shares of 5p each for a total of £5654,000 in order fo
satisty the exercise of share opfions

Qur Performance

Our Governance
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24.

25,

Share capital continued

Options granted to Directors and employees (note 32) to acquire ordinary shares of 5p in the Company and

still cutstancing at 31 December 2011 were as follows

Dates on which

Number Exercise exercisable

of shares  price per Earliest Latest
2002 Share Option Scheme 24 000 2600 16042011 1404 2012
2002 Share Option Scheme 199,000 1975 29052012 27052019
2002 share Option Scheme 195,000 3745 30032013 2803 2020
2002 Share Option Scheme 40,000 4890 2904 2014 27 04 2021
2010 Deferred Incentive Plan 28,352 - 28052013 2508 2013
2010 Deferred Incentive Plan 24,143 - 156042014 1307 2014

Ophons held by the Directors are shown in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 26 and 27

Share premium account and reserves

Share-
Share based
premium Treasury payment Retained
account shares reserve earnings
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £000
At 1 January 2010 4,820 (1.202) 159 15,551
Profit for the financial year - - - 3.478
Dividends paid - - - (1 607)
Increase in share-based payment reserve - - 108 -
Movement in pension scheme llability net of related
deferred tax - - - (1.221)
Shares 1ssued under employee share schemes 131 155 - -
Deferred tax on share-based payment - - - 185
Ar 1 January 2011 4,951 1.047) 267 16.383
Profit for the financial year - - - 4 469
Dwidends paid - - - (1 780)
Increase in share-based poayment reserve - - 162 -
Movement in pension scheme liatxilty net of related
deferred tax - - - (1.362)
Shares ssued under employee share schemes 51 116 - -
Deferred tax on share-based payment - - - an
At 31 December 2011 5,542 _(931) 429 17.699

The Group cumrently holds 498,218 (2010 560 218) ordinary shares of 5p each in treasury
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26. Translation reserve

0}

g

]

Transiahion E

reserve £

£'000 2

At T January 2010 630 5

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operahons 253 o
Deferred tax relahng 1o gans ansing on franslahon of foreign operahions 157
At 1 January 2011 1.040
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 81
Deferred tax relating to gains ansing on translahion of foreign cperations 1
At 31 December 2011 1.122

27. Commitments

Operating 1ease arrangements 8

Operafing lease payments represent renfals payable by the Group for certamn of its UK retail outlefs, its UK and 5

US warehouses, certain UK motor vehicles and its New York offices and showroom beases are negotiated on %

an individual basis 3

U}

The Group cs lessee g

2011 2010
£'000 £ 000
Mirmimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an
expense In the year 1,464 1 390

Al the balonce sheet date, the Group had cutstanding commitments for future rmimmum lease
payments under non-cancellable operatng leases, which fall due as follows

2011 2010 K%
£'000 £'000 2
Withun one year 1,512 1.501 5
In the second to fifth years inclusive 4,468 5,206 =
After five years 2,719 3016 o
8,699 9,723 o

The Group s lessor

At the balance sheet date the Group had contracted writh a fenant for the following future minimum lease

recelpts c
o

2011 2000 B

£000 £'000 £

Within one year 117 117 g
In the second to fifth years inclusive 322 439 =
After five years - b %
439 556 o

e

o]

£

w
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28. Contingent liabilities

The Group has given a guarantee of up to $900.000 to the landlord of the premises of Portmeinon Group USA,
Inc located in Connecticut, USA

29. Related party transactions

Transachons between the Group ond its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consalidation and are nat disclosed in this note Transachons between the Group and is assocwkates are
disclosed below Transactions between the Company and #ts subsidianes and associates are disclosed n
note g of the Company’s financial statements on page 76

The transachons dunng the year with associated undertakings were

Purchases Purchases Sales Sales

2011 2010 2011 2010

£'000 €000 £000 < 000

Portmeinon Canada Inc - - 2,346 2,385
Furlong Mills Limited 614 551 - -

The outstanding balances at 31 December 2011, with associated undertakings were

Debtor Debtor Creditor Creditor

2011 2010 201 2070

£000 £'000 £°000 €000

Portmeinion Canada Inc 833 373 - -
Furlong Mills Limited - - 44 100

Sales to Portmemnon Canada Inc are made af pnces agreed between Portmeinon Group UK Limited and
Portrneinon Canada Inc The sales figure includes management fees for Group services

Purchases from Furlong Mills Limited are made at pnices agreed between Portmeinon Group UK imited and
Furlong Mills Limited Portmeinon Group UK Limited receives a rebate related to its level of purchases from
Futlong Mills Limited The purchases figure includes & credit for management fees

Severg) of the Directors made purchases of goods from the Group dunng the yeor on the same ferms as
those available to all employees Total purchases did not exceed £1,000 for any Director in the year or in the
prior year

No Director of the Company had a financial interest in any matenal contract, other than those for service. fo
which the Company was a party during the financial year

The key monagement personnel of the Group are considered 1o be the Directors, the remuneration of whom s
set out In the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 24
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30. Pensions o
o
The Group operates a Group stakeholder pension plan In the UK and a discretionary money purchase S
scheme in the US £
‘8
The fotal cost charged to income of £804,000 (2010 £742.000) represents contnbutions payable to these 2
schemes by the Group at rates specified In the rules of the schemes 5
C
The UK defined benefit scheme was frozen, 1 e closed to new entrants and for future accrual of benefits at
5 Apri 1999
For the defined benefit scheme, the most recent tnennial valuation was at 5 Apnl 2008 The main actuanal
assumphions used in the valuahon were
® Price inflation of 3 70% per annum
® Pre-retrement valuation rate of interest of 6 60% per annum ®
®  Postretirement valuahon rate of inferest of 4 60% per annum 8
® Increases to penstons in payment of 5 00% per annum on benefits in excess of the guaranteed minimum g
pension (GMP) earmed prior to 6 Apnl 1997 and 3 50% per onnum on pensions earned affer 6 Apnl 1997 2
® Morfality expenence based upon PCADD tables with improvements based on year of birth and medium 3
cohort Improvements, subject to a mmmimum level of iImprovement of 1% per annum 5
O

At the date of the last valuation on 5 Apnl 2008 the market value of the scheme assets was €19,253 000 and
the scheme had a deficiency of £5,397,000

The actuanal valuahon of the scheme was updated at 31 December 2011 by qualfied actuanes
On 17 June 2011 the Company anncunced and communicated to all deferred members of the defined

benefit scheme that future revaluations of deferred pensions will now be based on CPI rather than RPI This led
to a change N the Company’s constructive obligation, reducing the defined benefit obligation by £880,000

This amount was recorded as an actuarial gain »

o

The major assurmphons used by the actuanes were %

20M 2010 2009 .:..f

Rate of Increase In pensions In payment 8
Post 06 04 88 GMP 3.00% 3 00% 3 00%
Pre 06 04 97 excess over GMP 5.00% 500% 5 00%
Post 06 04 97 pension 2.95% 3 40% 3 45%
Rate of revaluation of pensions in deferment 2.20% 350% 355%
Rate used to discount scheme llabilities 4.70% 540% 575%

Inflathion assumption

RPi 3.00% 3 50% 3 55%
CPl 2.20% n/a n/a

Shareholder Information
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30. Pensions continued

The amount included In the balance sheet ansing from the Group’s obligahons i respect of its defined
benefit scheme 1s as follows

20M 2010
Expected Expected
rate of Fair value rate of  Far value
return £'000 return £'000
Scheme assets
Equittes 6.10% 11.416 7 50% 11,997
Bonds 4.70% 3.516 5 40% 2,165
Insured annuthes 4.70% 6,389 5 40% 6,432
Cash 0.50% 97 Q0 50% 568
Total fair value of assets 21,418 21,162
Present value of defined benefit obligations (26,286) (25,464)
Deficit in the scheme (4.868) (4.302)
Analysis of the amount charged fo operatng profit
2011 2070
£'000 £'000
Currentt service cost - -
Past service cost - -
Anailysis of the amount included in the income statement
2011 2010
£000 £'000
Expected return on pension scheme assets 1,376 1,306
Interest on pension scheme abilties {1.354)  (1.31¢)
Amount credited to investiment revenue/(charged to other inance costs) 22 _(10)

The cumulative amount of actuanal gamns and losses recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive income since adophion of IFRS 1s a loss of £3,777.000 (2010 loss of £2.135.000)

Analysis of the actuanal loss recogrused in the Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income

2011 2010

£'000 < 000

Actuanal return less expected refurn on pension scheme assets (1.384) 40
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme liabilihes {258) (1 646)

Actuarial loss recognised in the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income (1.642) (1.606)
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The basis used to detfermine the return on scheme assets 1s as follows

Equihes 3 50% premium on the 20 year fixed-interest gilt rate of 2 80% less 0 2% for expenses

Bonds 15 year average redemption yield on AA-rated sterling corporate bonds of 4 70%

Insured annuities valued at the scheme discount rate of 4 70%

Cash UK base rate at 31 December 2011 of 0 5%

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligahons were as follows

2011 2010
£'000 £'060
At 1 January 25,464 23272
Service cost - -
Interest cost 1.354 1.316
Actuaral gains and losses 258 1,646
Benefits pard (790) (770)
At 31 December 26,286 25,464
Movements In the fair value of scheme assets were as follows
2011 2010
£000 £'000
At 1 January 21,162 19 635
Expected return on scheme assels 1.376 1 306
Actuanatl gains and losses (1.384) 40
Contributions by the employer 1.054 951
Benefits pad (7590) {770)
At 31 Dbecember 21,418 21,162
The history of expenence adjustments 1s as follows
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
£'000 €000 £'000 £ 000 £000
Present value of defined benefits (26,286) (25 464) (23.272) (20,681) {22 676)
Far value of scheme assets 21.418 21.162 19,635 16.459 20,178
Deficit in the scheme (4,868) (4.302) (3.637) (4,222) (2 498)
Expenence adjustment on
scheme labiiihies
Amount 427 - - 1,861 -
Percentage of scheme labiliiies (%) 2% - - % -
Experience adjustment on
scheme assels
Amount {1.384) 40 2,211 (4.696) (104)
Percentage of scheme assets (%) &% 0% 11% 29% 1%
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30. Pensions continued

31.

The estimated amount of contnbutions expected to be paid to the scheme dunng the current financiol year 1s
£800,000 (2011 £1,054.000)

Following the decision for the scheme fo be frozen 1 e closed to new entrants and to future acerual with effect
frormn 5 Apnil 1999, formal notice was given 1o employees in January 1999 A defined contnbuhon pension
scheme commenced cn 6 Apnl 1999 for all eligible UK employees This scheme was closed on 31 October
2002 and was replaced by a Group stakeholder pension plan

At 31 December 2011 contnbutions of £69.000 (2010 £73.000) due in respect of the current reporting penod
had not been paid over to the UK schemes

in the United States there was a provision for payments info the money purchase scheme of £133.000
(2010 £103.000) at 31 December 2011

Financial instrumenis

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the cntena for recognition the
basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised. In respect of each class
of financial asset, financial lakility and equity instrdment are disclosed n note 2

Financial risk management objectives

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that all entities I the Group will be able to conhinue as a going
concern while maximising the return fo stakeholders The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and
cash equivalents, barrowings and equity attnbutable te equity helders. comprising captal, reserves and
retained earnings as disclosed in notes 24 to 26

Credit risk

The Group s principal financial assets are cash, short-term deposits and trade receivables The Group's policy
15 to place funds on short-terrn deposit with hrghly rated insttuhons Accounts recewvable are monitored closely
and provisions are made for bad and doubtful debts where appropnate The creditworthiness of customers 1s
assessed prior to opening new accounts and on a regular basis for significant customers The assessment of
credit quality 1s outlined in note 19

The Group does not have any signiicant credit nsk exposute to any single counterparty or any Group of
counterparties having similar charactenstics

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of mpairment
losses, represents the Group s maximum exposure to credit nsk

Foreign currency risk management

The Group has exposure fo foreign currency nsk ansing from its net investments in and cash flows from
overseas subsidianes and associates Its policy In managing this nsk is fo maintain appropnate levels of net
assets in the overseas comparues and ulilise foreign currency forward contracts The most significant nsk of
exposure to foreign currency arnises fromn the US Dollar sales made by the UK subsichary 1o the US subsichary
The Group's net exposure fo US Doliar cash flows for the coming year 1s not expected to be significant due to
a natural hedged posifion Subsequent to the year end the Group placed forward contracts for Canadian
Dotllars, and an average rate option in US Dollars to manage the nsk arising from the refranstation of profit
made n the USA
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31. Financial instruments confinued

Q
Q
The Group enters nto denvative fransactions only to manage exposure arsing from its underlying businesses g
No speculative denvative contracts are entered inio £
o
=
The Group undertakes certain trading transachons denominated in foreign currencies Hence, exposures 10 2
exchange rate fluctuations anse Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters 5
utising forward foreign exchange contracts when considered appropriatie o
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabalties
at the reporting dote are as follows
Liabihties Assets
2011 2010 2011 2010
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
Eurc 317 1 243 593 ©
US Doliar 2,894 3.420 4,660 7.789 O
Canadian Dollar - - 250 336 5
Swecdhsh Krona 1 5 & 74 %
Norwegian Krone - - 55 83 3
(U]
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis 8

The Group s manly exposed to the currencies of Euro, US Dollar Canachan Dollar, Swedish Krona and
Norwegian Krone

The following table detarls the Group's sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in Sterling against the
relevant foreign currencies 10% 1s the sensifivity rate which represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign cufrency denominated monetary iems and adjusts therr fransichon ot the year end for a 10% change
in foreign currency rates A negative number below iIndicates a decrease in profit where Sterling strengthens
10% aganst the relevant currency For a 10% weakenng of Sterling against the relevant currency, there would

be an equal ond opposite iImpact on profit fﬁ
[3)
Euro US Dollar Canadion Dollar Swedish Krona  Norwegian Krone 5
mpact impact wmpact impact impact E
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 5
£000 £ 000 €000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 )
Profit
or loss 7 _(46) (71) 126 (23) (31 (6) (7 (5) (8

Liquidity risk management

Ulhmate responstility for iquidity nsk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an
appropnate hquidity nsk management framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements The Group manages iquidity nsk by maintaining
adequate reserves and banking facihes, by moritonng forecast and actual cash fiows and matchuing the
matunty profiles of financial assets and iiabilities

Shareholder Information
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31. Financial instruments continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group's expected matunty for its assets and habilhes The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual matunties of the financial assets and habiihies including
interest that will be eamed on those assets except where the Group anticipates that the cash flow will occur In
a different penod

Welghted Non-
average finoncial
effective Less than Over assets/
interest rate T month 1-3 months 3 months (liabilities) Total
At 31 December 2011 % £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financia! assets - 4,717 1,887 - - 6,604
Other assets - - - - 23,570 23.570
Cash and cash equivalents 0.5% 6,777 - - - 6,777
Total assets 11.494 1.887 ~ 23,570 36,951
Shareholders funds - - - - (24.397) (24.397)
Financral habithes - (5.486) (684) (452) - (6.822)
Other habiliies - 181) - (683) - (864)
Pension scheme deficit - - - - (4.868) {4,868)
Total liabliities and
shareholders’ funds (5.667) (884) (1.135) (29.265) (36,951)
Cumulative gap 5.827 6.830 5.695 - -
Weighted Non-
average financial
effective  Less than Over assets/
interest rate 1 month 1-3 months 3 months  (habilihes) Total
At 31 December 2010 % £ 000 £'000 £'000 £'3000 £000
Financial assets - 4,300 2,291 - - 6,591
Other assets - - - - 21,145 21 145
Cash and cash equivalents 05% 6,249 - - - 6 249
Total assets 10 549 2,291 - 21,145 33.985
Shareholders’ funds - - - - {(22,122) {22122)
Financial habtiies - (5754) (1.071) (379) - (7.204)
Other habitties - - - (357) - {357)
Pension scheme deficit - - - - (4,302) {4.302)
Total habihfies and
shareholders’ funds (5§ 754) (1.071) (736) (26,424 (33.985)

Cumulative gap 4,795 6015 5,279 -
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31. Financial instruments continued

@
The following tables detail the Group's remaining confractual matunty for its non-denvative financial habilihes The :C;'
tables hove been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilihes based on the earliest =
date on which the Group can be required to pay The table mcludes both interest ond pnncipal cash flows é
The Group expects to meet its obligations in excess of cash held from operahing cash flows and proceeds of D
matunng financial assets The Group s not significantly exposed at the year end to interest rate nisk 5
O
Weighted
average Non-
effective Less than Over financial
interest rate 1 month 1-3 months 3 months liabilities Total
% £'000 £'000 £000 £ 000 £'000
Trade and other payables - 5.486 884 452 - 6,822
Tax habilihes - 181 - 644 - 825
Pension scheme deficit - - - - 4,868 4,868
Grant received - - - 39 - 39 8
At 31 Decamber 2011 5,667 884 1,135 4,868 12,554 §
3]
Weighted 3
average Non- (U]
effective  Less than Over financial 5
interest rate 1 month 1-3 months 3 months habiihes Total o
% £'000 £'000 £'000 €000 £'000
Trade and other payables - 5,754 1.071 379 - 7.204
Tax igbihes - - - 300 - 300
Pension scheme deficit - - - - 4,302 4,302
Grant received - - - 57 - 57
At 31 December 2010 5754 1071 736 4 302 11 863

8
e
3]
c
O
c
=
5
&)
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32, Share-based payments

Equity-seftled share option schemes
The Group operates two share ophon schemes for senior managers and Directors

The Group recognised fofal expenses of £162,000 and £108,000 related to equity share-based payment
transactions in 2011 and 2010 respectively

a) The Portmeirion 2002 Share Option Scheme

Options are exercisable at a pnce equal to the average quoted market price of the Company s shares on
the three trading days pnor te the dale of the grant The veshing pernod is three years If the oplions remamn
unexercised after a penod of between four and ten years from the date of grant the options expire

Details of the share options outstanding dunng the year are as follows

201 2010
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise Number exercise
of share price of share price
options £ options £
Cutstanding at 1 January 645,144 2.947 533,000 2733
Granted durng the year 40,000 4.890 195,000 3745
Lapsed dunng the year - - - -
Surrendered dunng the year - - - -
Exercised dunng the year (227.1449) 3.151 (82,856) 3450
Quistanding at 31 December 458,000 3.016 645,144 2947
Exercisable at 31 December 24,000 2.600 147,144 3 450

The options outstanding at 31 December 2011 had a weighted average remairing contractual iife of 6 7
years (2010 57 years) In 2011, options were granted on 28 Aprl The aggregate of the estimated farr vaiue of
those options 1s £53,639 In 2010, options were granted on 29 March The aggregate of the estimated fair value
of those options ts £211,958

The range of exercrse prices for the ophons outstanding ot 31 December 15 from £1 975 to £4 890

The inputs info the Black-Scholes prnicing model are as follows

2011 2010
Weighted average share price at date of grant £4.850 £3 950
Weighted average exercise price £4.890 €3 745
Expected volotiy 7% 36%
Expected Ife 6.5 years 6 S5vyears
Risk-free rate 3.05% 3 33%
Expected dmidend rate 3.59% 4 00%

Expected volanlity was determmined by colculating the histoncol volahiity over the previcus 6 § years The
expected Ife used in the model assumes that the options will be exercised on average halfway through the
penod dunng which they can be exercised
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32. Share-based payments continued

1))
b) The Portmeirion Group 2010 Deferred Incentive Share Option Plan g
Ophons are granted to Executive Directors 1IN a year over shares with a market value not exceeding 20% of £
the gross incentive earmed by the relevant employee in respect of the previous finanoial year Options are _‘g'
exercisable at £1 per ndividual as the total exercise price The vesting penod 1s three years If the ophons 2
remain unexercised after a penod of three years and three months from the date of grant the ophons expire 5
O
Cetails of the share options cutstanding dunng the year are as follows
2011 2010

Total Total

Number exercise Nurmber exercise

of share price of share pnce

options < options 1

Qutstanding at 1 January 28,352 £3 - -
Granted durning the year 24,143 £3 28.352 £3 8
Lapsed during the year - - - - S
Surrendered during the year - - - g
Exercised dunng the year - - - - 3
Outstanding at 31 December 52.495 £6 28,352 £3 o
Exercisable at 31 December - -~ - - c:)“:

The ophions cutstanding at 31 December 2011 had a weighted average remaining contractual hfe of 2 1
years (2010 2 6 years) In 2011, ophons were granted on 14 Apnl The aggregate of the estmated far value of
those ophons 1s £105,875 In 2010 ophions were granted on 27 May The aggregate of the estimated far value
of those ophons 1s £101 646

The inputs into the Black-5cheotes pncing model are as follows

2011 2010
Weighted average share pnice at date of grant £4.900 £4 050 ©
Weighted average exercise price Nil Nil -g
Expected volahlity 50% 47% g
Expected life 3.125 years 3 125 years =
Risk-free rafe 1.75% 185% =
Expected dvidend rate 3.55% 3 90% 8

Expected volatiity was determined by calculahng the histoncal volatility over the previous 3 125 years The
expected Ife used in the model assumes that the options will be exercised on average halfway through the
penod dunng which they can be exercised

Shareholder Information
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Company Balance Sheet

31 December 2011

2011 2010

Notes £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Investment in subsidiary undertakings c 1.455 1.455
Current assots
Cash - 4
Debtors all of which fall due affer more than one year d 10,211 10,911
Creditors amounts falling due within one year e (2,587) (2,638)
Net current assets 8.324 8,277
Net assets 9.77¢ 9,732
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital f 536 528
Share premum account f 5,542 4,951
Other reserves f 197 197
Treasury shares f (931) {1.047)
Share-based payment reserve f 429 267
Retained earnings f 4,006 4,836
Shareholders’ funds 9,779 9,732

The financial statements of Portmenon Group PLC, company registration nurmibber 124842, were dapproved by the
Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 21 March 2012 They were signed on its behall by

L.F.Bryan } Directors

B.W.J. Phillips /%
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Company Reconciliation of Movements in
Shareholders’ EQuity

for the yeor ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010

£000 £:000

Opening balance 9,732 8.942

Profit for the year 950 2,003
Dmidends paid (1.780) (1.607)

Shares 1ssued under employee share schemes 715 286

Increase in share-based payment reserve 162 108

Closing balance 9.779 ?.732

Equity compnses share capital, share premum equity reserves, treasury shares and retained eamings

Our Performance

Our Governance
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Notes fo the Company Financial Statements

a. Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act
2006 They have been prepared under the histoncal cost convenhon and in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom Accounting Standards and law The principal accounting policies are summarnsed
below They have all been applied consistently throughout the year ond the preceding year

investments
Fixed asset investments in subsidiaries and assoctates are shown at cost less provision for impairment

b. Profit for the year

As permifted by sechon 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own
profit and loss account for the year The Company reported a profit for the financial year of £950,000
(2010 £2,003,000) The audritors remunerahon for audit and other services is disclosed In note ¢ to the
consolidated financial statements

c¢. Fixed asset investment

Subsichary undertaking

20M 2010
£'000 £'000

30,100 ordinary shares of £ each in Portmernon Group UK Limited representing
100% of the ssued share copital of cost 1,455 1.455

1,455 1,455
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c. Fixed asset investment continued

@
At 31 December 2011 the Company had the followtng subsidiary and associated undertakings g
Counftry of operation g
and incorporation Nature of busingss E
Subsidiary undertakings E
Portmetrion Group UK Limited England and Wales Ceramic manufacturer, marketing and 8
distnbuhon of homeware
Portmeirnon Finance Limited England and Wales Dormnant
Portmeirion Enterpnses Limited* England and Wales Intermediate holding Company
Portmeinon Disinbution Limited®*  England and Wales Domant
Portmeirnion Services Limited* England and Wales Dormant
Portmeinon Group USA,Inc T UsA Marketing and distnibution of homeware
Portmeinon Group Designs, LLC*  USA Domant
Associated undertakings 8
Portmeinon Canada Inc Canada Marketing and distnibution of homeware S
Furlong Mills Limited England and Wales Suppliers and millers of clay c
S
The companies are incorporated in England and Wales and registered in England and Wales except where (U]
stated The share capital of all subsidiary undertakings consists solely of ordinary shares The Company holds g

100% of the share capital of all subsidiaries 50% of the ordinary share capital of Portmewon Canada Inc and
27 58% of the ordinary share capital of Furlong Mills Limited Furlong Mills Limited supplies Portmeinon Group
UK Lirmited with all of its clay raw matenals

* Wholly owned by Portmemon Group UK Limited
T Wholly owned by Porfmeinon Enterpnses imited
~ Wholly owned by Portmeinon Group USA Inc

d. Debtors
n
e
201 2010 2
£'000 £'000 2
Loans owed by subsidiary undertakings falling due after more than one year v
Portmerrion Group UK Limited 10,146 10,146 8
Porimeinon Enferpnses Lirmited 705 705
Portmeirnion Distnbution Limited 60 60
10,911 10,911
e. Creditors
S
201 2010 B
£'000 £'000 g
Amounts faling due within one year E
Amounts owed fo subsidiary undertaking, Porimenon Group UK Limited 2,514 2,563 %
Cther taxation and social secunty 6 6 o]
Other creditors 43 43 2
Corperation tax 24 26 o
2,587 2,638 ‘%’
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Shore capital, share premium account and reserves

Details of share capital are disclosed In note 24 to the consolidated financial statements

The moverments on the share premium account and other reserves are shown below

Share-
Share based
premium Other Treasury payment Retained
account reserves shares reserve earniNgs
£'000 £'000 £'000 £ 000 <000
At 1 January 2010 4,820 197 (1 202) 159 4,440
Profit for the financial year - - - - 2003
Dividends paid - - - - (1.607)
Increase in share-bosed payment reserve - - - 108 -
Shares issued under employee share schemes 131 - 155 - -
At 1 January 2011 4 951 197 (1.047) 267 4,836
Profit for the financial year - - - - @50
Dividends paid - - - - {1.780)
Increase in share-based payment reserve - - - 162 -
Shares 1ssued under employee share schemes 521 - 116 - -
At 31 December 2011 5.542 197 (931) 429 4,006

Related party transactions

During 2011 net transachons totalling £49,000 were debited (2010 £760 000 debited) to the intercompany
account with the Company’s subsichary, Portmeinon Group UK Limited These transachons represented
payments and receipts made on behalf of the Company by Portmeinon Group UK Limited an intergroup
dividend and the charge for share-based payments

The outstanding balances with subsidiary underfakings ot 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010
are shown in notes d and e above The loans owed by subsidiary undertakings are not considered to be
repayable within one year

Ne balances were owed to or from the Company by associated undertakings

Contingent liabilities

The Company i1s a party to the landlord guarantee referred o In note 28 and the finance liability disclosed in
note 21 to the consolidated financial statements
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Five Year Summary

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT INFORMATION

]
31
Years ended 31 December g
E
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 o
€ 000 £000 < 000 <£'000 £'000 E
Revenue 32,017 31.838 43,165 51,243 53,610 cg
o
Profit before tax 4419 1,090 3,718 5,249 6,330
Tax (1.393) (515) (1,265) (1.774) (1.861)
Profit attributable to equity holders 3026 575 2 453 3,475 4,469
Earnings per share 3077p 581p 24 73p 34 91p 43.94p
Diluted earnings per share 29 55p 5 80p 24 66p 34 39 43.12p
Dividends paid and proposed per share 14 70p 14 70p 15 80p 17 40p 19.60p 8
c
O
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION g
At 31 December 3
&
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 8
£'000 £ 000 €000 £'000 £000
Assets employed
Non-current assets 8 767 8.041 @ 622 10,379 10.18¢
Curment assets 18.919 20,651 21,258 23,606 26,762
Current habihies (4.608) (4.318) (5.920) (7.504) {7.647)
Non-current liabilihes (2.498) (4.326) (4.474) (4 359) (4.907)
20,580 20048 20,486 22122 24,397
Financed by
Called up share capital 528 528 528 528 536
Share prermium account and reserves 20,052 19,520 19,958 21,594 23,861
20,580 20,048 20,486 22,122 24,397
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Company Information

Board of Direclors

Richard J Steele BCOM FCA CTA
Lawrence F Bryan BA

Michael Haynes MCIM

Brett WJ Phillips BSc ACA

Barbara Thomas Judge CBE 8A ID
Jants Kong OBE BSc

Company Secretary
Brett WJ Phillips BSc ACA

Registered Office and Number
London Reoad

Stoke-on-Trent

ST47Q&

Te!  +44 (0) 1782 744721

Fax +44 (0) 1782 744061
www partmeinongroup com
Registered number 124842

Auditors

Mazars LLP

45 Church Street
Birrminghaom

B3 2RT

Nominaled Adviser and Stockbroker
Seymour Plerce Limited

20 Old Bailey

London

EC4M 7EN

Registrars

Capita Registrars

The Registry

34 Beckenham Road

Beckenham

Kent

BR3 4TU

Tel 0871 664 03D0* (UX)
+44 (0) 208 639 3399 (Outside UK)

Fax  +44 {0) 208 639 2220

Email ssd@capraregistrars com

WWW capiiaregistrars com

*  Calls cost 19p per minute plus network extras
Lines open between ¢ 00 am and 5 30 pm
Mondoy-Fnday excl bank holidays

Non-executive Chairman

Chief Executive

Group Sales and Marketing Director
Group Finance Director
Non-executive Direcior
Non-executive Director

Solicitors

Pinsent Masons LLP
3 Colmore Circus
Birmingham

B4 6BH

KJD Freeth LLP
Churchiil House
Regent Road
Stoke-on-Trent
ST1 3RQ

Financial PR Advisers

Pelham Bell Pothinger

5th Floor, Holborn Gate

330 High Holborn

London

WCV 7QD

Tel +44 (0) 20 7861 3232

Fax +44 (0) 20 7861 3233

Emaill pr@pelhambellpotinger co uk
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Annual General Meeting May
Interim Report August
Dividends

Interm announced August
Paid October
Final announced March
Paid May

Our Governance Our Performance

Our Financials
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Retail Outlets

Bridgend Shop

Unit 71. Brdgend Designer Outlet
The Derwen, Bndgend

South Wales

CF329SU

Te! +44 (0)1656 669038

Cheshire Oaks Shop

Unit 72, Cheshire Oaks Designer Qutlet
Kinsey Road

Ellesmere Port

South Wrral

CH65 9JJ

Tel +44 (0)151 355 1538

Colne Shop ‘Boundary Mill’
Boundary Ml Stores

Vivary Way

Colne

Lancashire

BB3 ONW

Tel +44 (0)1282 856200

East Midlands Shop

Unit 12a East Midlands Designer Cutlet
Mansfield Road

South Normanton

Derbyshire

DESS 2JwW

Te! +44 (0)1773 545375

Longton Shop

473 King Street
Longton

Stoke-on-Trent
Staffordshire

ST3 1EVU

Tel +44 (0)1782 326661

Worldwide Stockists

Stoke Shop

London Road
Stoke-on-Trent
Staffordshiure

S14 7Q&

Te! +44 (0)1782 411756

Street Shop

Clarks Village

Farm Road

Street

Somerset

BA16 0BB

Tel +44 (0)1458 446703

Swindon Shop ‘Style Your Home’
Swindon Designer Outlet

Kemble Drive

Swindon

Wiltshire

SN2 2DY

Tel +44 (0)1793 422910

Trentham Shop

Umit 230, Trentham Shopping Village
Trentham

Stoke-on-Trent

Staffordshire

5T4 8AX

Tel +44 (0)1782 657828

Walsall Shop ‘Boundary Mill’
Boundary Mill Stores

Junction 10 Retall Park
Bentley Mill Way

Walsall

West Midlands

W52 OLE

Tel +44 (0)1922 618200

Details of worldwide stockists can be found on our website www portmelnongroup com
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Portmeirion Group Patterns

Details of Portmeinon Group patterns are shown on pages 4 to 5 Portmeirion’s The World of Enc Carle - The Very
Hungry Caterpillar™ (@ Enc Carle LLC) 1s produced under licence from Enc Carle LLC Fifi and Porcelain Garden
Sanderson for Portmeinon ranges are produced under icence from Abans Holdings bmited Portmeinon Vintage
Kelilogg's range i1s produced under hcence from Kellogg Company Spode’s Paddington Bear™ range 1s produced
under heence from The Copynghts Group Lid Paddington Bear™. Paddington™ and PB™ are trade marks of
Paddington and Company Ltd A number of Pmpernel designs and Royal Worcester mug designs are hicensed from
third parhes, details of which can be obtained from the Company s registered office
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